
 
KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF 

KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

Thursday, November 24, 2016 at 6:15 p.m. 
(In-camera Session 6:15 p.m. – Open Session 7:00 p.m.) 

 
1994 Fisher Drive, Peterborough, Ontario 

 
Character Makes a Difference  

The Character Attribute for November is Courage 
 

* R E V I S E D   A G E N D A * 
 

 
ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
ITEM 2. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

(Open Session of the Regular Meeting resumes at 7:00 p.m.) 
 
ITEM 3. NATIONAL ANTHEM AND A MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
  Sounds of the Next Generation 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S REMARKS 
 
PRESENTATION TO CHAIRPERSON 

 
ITEM 4. CHARACTER ATTRIBUTE B STUDENT TRUSTEE 
 
ITEM 5. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM 6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

6.1 For the Regular Meeting of Kawartha Pine Ridge District School 
Board held on Thursday, October 27, 2016 – ** 

 
ITEM 7. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM 8. DELEGATIONS 
 

8.1 DELEGATIONS (10 minutes) 
 

8.2 DELEGATIONS (3 minutes) 
 

8.3 DISPOSITION OF DELEGATION CONCERNS 
 
ITEM 9. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
ITEM 10. STUDENT TRUSTEE REPORT – **  
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ITEM 11. DECISION ITEMS 
 

11.1 COMMITTEE DECISION REPORTS 
 

11.1.1 Resource Committee Report – ** 
 

* 11.1.2 Audit Committee Report – ** 
 

11.1.3 Special Education Advisory Committee Report – ** 
 

11.2 DECISION REPORTS 
 
11.2.1 Pupil Accommodation Review: Kirby Centennial Public 

School – ** 
 

11.2.2 Naming of New Lakefield Elementary School – Ad Hoc 
Committee – ** 

 
ITEM 12. ONTARIO PUBLIC SCHOOL BOARDS= ASSOCIATION (OPSBA) 

REPORT 
 
ITEM 13. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
ITEM 14. INFORMATION ITEMS – CONSENT ITEMS 
 

14.1 Parent Involvement Committee Report – ** 
 

14.2 Program Review Committee Report – ** 
 

14.3 First Nations Education Services Agreement Committee Report – ** 
 

14.4 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Report – ** 
 
ITEM 15. BOARD MEMBER ADDITIONS 
 
ITEM 16. FUTURE MEETING DATES – ** 
 
ITEM 17. QUESTION PERIOD 
 
ITEM 18. REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE IN-CAMERA SESSION 
 
ITEM 19. ADJOURNMENT 
 
** – Copy Attached 
 
Note: If unable to attend, please advise Susan Beacock, Executive Assistant to the 

Director – Trustee Liaison, at 705-742-9773 or 1-877-741-4577, Extension 2006. 



 
Item 6.1     November 24, 2016 

 
 SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL 1 
 

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF 

KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
HELD THURSDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2016 AT 6:15 P.M. 

AT 1994 FISHER DRIVE, PETERBOROUGH, ONTARIO  
 
PRESENT 
 

Cathy Abraham (Chairperson of the Board), Sarah Bobka (Vice-chairperson 
of the Board), Wayne Bonner, Anthony Caruso, Cyndi Dickson, Rose Kitney, 
Jaine Klassen Jeninga, Angela Lloyd, Diane Lloyd, Mary Lynch-Taylor, 
Shirley Patterson, and Tenzin Shomar (Student Trustee). 
 
Regrets: Nil. 
 
Absent: Nil. 
 
Also Present: R. Hick, C. Arnew, C. Foy, S. Girardi, G. Ingram, J. Leclerc, 

P. Mangold, J. Nigro, J. Tompkins; L. Piccinin, and G. Kidd. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. 
 

2. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Kitney 
 Seconded by: Trustee Caruso 

 
(16-176) That the Board move into Committee of the Whole, In-camera (6:15 p.m.). 

CARRIED 
The Open Session of the meeting resumed at 7:05 p.m. 
 
The Chairperson recognized and acknowledged that the Board is meeting on the 
traditional territory of the Mississauga First Nations. 
 

3. NATIONAL ANTHEM AND A MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Chairperson Cathy Abraham introduced Duke of Cambridge Public School 
students who performed an instrumental and vocal rendition of the National 
Anthem, followed by a Moment of Silence. 
 
The students provided a musical presentation, including a school song: 
“What I Like About the Duke”.  Trustees, the Director of Education and 
senior administration expressed their sincere thanks and appreciation for 
the performance.  
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4. CHARACTER ATTRIBUTE – STUDENT TRUSTEE 
 
Student Trustee Tenzin Shomar spoke to this month’s character attribute, 
Fairness. 

 
5. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Caruso 

 
(16-177) That the agenda be adopted to include the following topics under Board 

Member Additions: 
 
 Change of Season 
 Outhouses for the Havelock and District Snowmobile Club, 

Campbellford District High School, Norwood District High School 
 Northumberland Land Trust, Walking the 401 
 Millbrook / South Cavan Public School Apps and Activities Night 
 Northumberland Schools 
 West Northumberland Schools, Local Government Week in 

Northumberland County 
 Adam Scott Collegiate Vocational Institute Alumni Donation 
 Dinner With Maasai Warriors 
 Pride Parade 

CARRIED 
 

6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
6.1 Regular Board Meeting – Thursday, September 22, 2016 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Lynch-Taylor 

 
(16-178) That the minutes for the Regular Board meeting held on Thursday, 

September 22, 2016 be adopted as recorded. 
CARRIED 

 
7. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

 
Nil. 
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8. DELEGATIONS 
 
8.1 DELEGATIONS (10 minutes) 
 

Nil. 
 

8.2 DELEGATIONS (3 minutes) 
 

Nil. 
 

8.3 DISPOSITION OF DELEGATION CONCERNS 
 

Nil. 
 

9. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
9.1 Priorities for the Director of Education 2016-2017 

 
Director R. Hick reviewed with members of the Board his identified 
priorities for the next school year, including: 
 
(a) Primary and Junior student achievement in mathematics. 
(b) Student and staff health and well-being. 
(c) Promoting innovative learning environments. 
 
Director Hick informed trustees that he was unable to be present at the 
October 27, 2016 Board meeting as he was in attendance at a Council of 
Directors of Ontario meeting which focussed on provincial Education 
Quality and Accountability Office (EQAO) results, particularly for Grade 6 
and for mathematics. 
 
The Director advised he has had the opportunity to go to approximately 20 
different schools in the last month to visit classrooms and speak with 
principals regarding mathematics, test results, professional development 
for staff, and accountability, and as always is very impressed with what is 
happening in schools on a wide variety of levels. 
 
With regard to student and staff health and well-being, it is particularly 
important that schools continue to be places that create lifelong memories 
and relationships, where positive events continue to take place school to 
school, person to person, and student to student in a way that is healthy 
and well-rounded for our students. 
 
Concerning the promotion of innovative learning environments, there is a 
wide range of different approaches taking place in our classrooms, from 
Kindergarten through Grade 12, and we need to promote a culture and a 
climate to move beyond what was done in the past and take the 
opportunity and licence to learn from research and colleagues, and to 
move forward.  
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A trustee inquired as to the Board’s involvement in the Ministry 
consultation on promoting well-being that is underway at the present time.  
The Director informed trustees that Assistant Deputy Minister Denise 
Dwyer is responsible for the consultation sessions, and it is his 
understanding that the goal over the course of this year is to determine 
ways of measuring staff and student well-being, baselines, and 
assessment material so that progress can be measured.  Invitations have 
been received to sessions on November 9 and 10, 2016 in Toronto and 
Barrie Region on November 15, 2016, presumably to provide input to that 
discussion. 
 

10. STUDENT TRUSTEE REPORT 
 
Student Trustee Tenzin Shomar spoke to student participation in Terry Fox Runs 
and his first school visit as Student Trustee at Duke of Cambridge Public School 
on October 13, 2016.  The school visit began with a tour of the school with 
Trustee Sarah Bobka, Superintendent Joe Tompkins and Principal Robert 
Pellerin.  Student Trustee Shomar noted that it was very informative to speak 
with students and expressed thanks to students and staff of Duke of Cambridge 
Public School for being such gracious hosts that day. 
 
Trustees heard that at the September 20, 2016 Student Leadership Group (SLG) 
meeting, best practices and what other student governments are doing across 
our school board were shared, and preliminary planning took place for future 
events, including upcoming elementary leadership conferences.  Thanks were 
extended to all trustees who attended the meeting, as well as Director Hick, and 
it was noted that the commitment and passion received from the school board 
and everything the Board does for student voice is greatly appreciated.  There 
will be two separate SLG meetings taking place on November 9, 2016 at 
4:00 p.m., one at Thomas A. Stewart Secondary School and one at Clarington 
Central Secondary School, to organize the elementary leadership conferences. 
 
It was further noted that the primary focus of the November 17-20, 2016 Ontario 
Student Trustees’ Association’s Fall General Meeting is to prepare all student 
trustees for the year ahead, as well as to collaboratively work on initiatives that 
enhance Ontario’s education system.  These conferences are invaluable to 
student trustees and Student Trustee Shomar advised he is looking forward to 
continue working with fellow student trustees in the coming months. 
 

11. DECISION ITEMS 
 
11.1 COMMITTEE DECISION REPORTS 

 
11.1.1 Chairpersons’ Committee Report 

 
Committee Chairperson C. Abraham reported that the committee 
met on September 28, 2016 to receive a Director’s update with 
regard to attracting and increasing international students in our 
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system, and the establishment of child care space at 
Peterborough Alternative and Continuing Education (PACE) at 
PCVS.  The Policy Review for 2016-2017 report was presented to 
the committee by Director R. Hick, as were proposed revisions to 
Board Policy HR-1.4, Selection and Appointment to All Positions.  
Policies were discussed at length by the committee and a further 
revision was made to the Selection and Appointment to All 
Positions policy.  Information items included the Trustee Budget 
for September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016, the Annual 
Expenditure of Trustees for September 1, 2015 to August 31, 
2016, and Student Trustee Conferences. 
 
The following policies were included with the report as 
Appendices A to L: 
 
 B-1.3, Indemnification 
 B-3.2, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion 
 B-4.4, Orientation Program for Newly Elected Trustees 
 B-5.2, Media Relations 
 B-7.1, Communications with the Community 
 BA-1.3, Cafeteria Services 
 BA-4.7, Fidelity Insurance 
 BA-5.2, Disposal of Surplus or Obsolete Materials, Furniture 

and Equipment 
 BA-6.3, School Playground Equipment 
 ES-3.6, Program Safety 
 ES-2.2, School Organization 
 HR-1.4, Selection and Appointment to All Positions 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Klassen Jeninga 

 
(16-179) That Board Policy B-4.4, Orientation Program for Newly 

Elected Trustees, be approved with no changes. 
 

(16-180) That Board Policy B-7.1, Communications with the 
Community, be approved with no changes. 
 

(16-181) That Board Policy BA-1.3, Cafeteria Services, be approved 
with no changes. 
 

(16-182) That Board Policy BA-5.2, Disposal of Surplus or Obsolete 
Materials, Furniture and Equipment, be approved with no 
changes. 
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(16-183) That Board Policy ES-3.6, Program Safety, be approved with 
no changes. 
 
Further to a question concerning consideration of putting 
cafeterias into larger elementary schools, confirmation was 
provided that the funding formula does not include cafeteria 
services in elementary schools. 
 
The motions were ........................................................... CARRIED 
 
During discussion of Board Policy B-1.3, Indemnification, a trustee 
noted that the Canada Narcotic Control Act referenced in Items 1.2 
and 2.2 was repealed in 1996, and that references in the policy 
need to be replaced with the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee D. Lloyd 

 
 (16-184) That Board Policy B-1.3, Indemnification, be approved as 

revised. 
CARRIED 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee D. Lloyd 

 
 (16-185) That Board Policy B-3.2, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion, be 

reviewed by members of the Equity, Diversity and Inclusion 
Committee. 

CARRIED 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Bonner 

 
 (16-186) That Board Policy B-5.2, Media Relations, be approved as 

revised. 
CARRIED 

 
During discussion of Board Policy BA-4.7, Fidelity Insurance, it 
was requested that the second sentence be revised as follows:  
Further, the insurance policy shall include . . . 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee D. Lloyd 

 
 (16-187) That Board Policy BA-4.7, Fidelity Insurance, be approved as 

revised. 
CARRIED
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It was agreed that Board Policy BA-6.3, School Playground 
Equipment, would also be sent to municipalities for input and that 
the recommendation be amended accordingly. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Dickson 

 
(16-188) That Board Policy BA-6.3, School Playground Equipment, be 

sent to school councils and municipalities for input. 
CARRIED 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Kitney 

 
(16-189) That Board Policy ES-2.2, School Organization, be approved 

as revised. 
CARRIED 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Lynch-Taylor 

 
(16-190) That Board Policy HR-1.4, Selection and Appointment to All 

Positions, be approved as revised. 
CARRIED 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Klassen Jeninga 

 
(16-191) That the Chairpersons’ Committee Report, dated October 27, 

2016, be received for information. 
CARRIED 

 
11.1.2 Resource Committee Report 

 
Committee Chairperson A. Lloyd reported that the committee met 
on October 11, 2016 to review proposed revisions to Board Policy 
BA-5.1, Purchasing Procedures (Appendix A to the report) and 
Board Policy B-8.3, Facility Partnerships (Appendix B to the 
report).  The Viability Study of a Kindergarten to Grade 12 school 
at Norwood District High School was presented to the committee, 
and the 2016 Ontario School Boards’ Insurance Exchange 
(OSBIE) Surplus Premium Refund for Kawartha Pine Ridge 
District School Board letter was reviewed. 
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Point of Order: Trustee Dickson raised a Point of Order with 
respect to whether quorum was maintained at this committee 
meeting after her departure from the meeting prior to moving to 
open session. 
 
As a clarification, G. Kidd indicated that quorum calculations were 
based on Trustee Members directly appointed to the committee. 
In this case, based on five (5) members of the committee, the 
number of members required to constitute quorum is three (3), and 
that ex officio committee members (Chairperson, Vice-chairperson) 
contribute to that complement. 
 
Further discussion occurred, with references to the relevant policy 
sections related to quorum, including Board Policy B-2.2, Annual 
Meetings and Committees of the Board.  The Chairperson 
indicated the matter could be reviewed for further clarification at a 
future Chairpersons’ Committee meeting. 
 
Trustee Kitney also indicated that she was in attendance at this 
meeting, and that her attendance made the question of quorum 
moot in this case. 
 
In response to a question from a member of the Board, 
Superintendent Ingram provided further explanation on the 
breadth and detail being considered as part of the Kindergarten to 
Grade 12 Viability Study for Norwood District High School. 
 
On another matter, Director Hick provided clarification on the 
nature of the (OSBIE) Surplus Premium Refund, and the context 
of this refund within the Board’s overall budget. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Caruso 

 
(16-192) That Board Policy BA-5.1, Purchasing Procedures, be 

approved as revised. 
CARRIED 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Bonner 

 
(16-193) That Board Policy B-8.3, Facility Partnerships, be approved 

as revised 
CARRIED 
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It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Kitney 

 
(16-194) That the Resource Committee Report, dated October 27, 

2016, be received for information. 
 

Chairperson Abraham noted that Trustee Kitney would be added 
to the attendance section of the Resource Committee Report. 
 
The motion was .............................................................. CARRIED 
 

11.1.3 Program Review Committee Report 
 
Chairperson C. Abraham, on behalf of Committee Chairperson 
J. Klassen Jeninga, reported that the committee met on 
September 20, 2016 to review revisions to Board Policy ES-3.1, 
Alternative, Adult, and Continuing Education (Attachment 1 to the 
report) and Board Policy ES-1.7, Nutrition (Attachment 3 to the 
report); and to consider the rescinding of Board Policy ES-3.9, 
Arts Program (Attachment 2 to the report).  The committee 
received an overview of changes to the Kindergarten program 
and information regarding the voluntary fall opportunity for the 
Online Ontario Secondary School Literacy Test. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Bonner 

 
(16-195) That Board Policy ES-3.1, Alternative, Adult, and Continuing 

Education, be approved as revised. 
CARRIED 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Caruso 

 
 That Board Policy ES-3.9, Arts Program, be rescinded. 
 

Trustees considered the value of keeping the policy which speaks 
to the value of the arts program, or rescinding the policy as the 
arts is a curriculum area supported by the Ministry of Education. 

 
The motion was ........................................................... DEFEATED 
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During review of Board Policy ES-1.7, Nutrition, trustees spoke to 
potential changes forthcoming to the Eating Well with Canada’s 
Food Guide and it was agreed that references to the guide be 
revised as follows: . . . Eating Well with Canada’s Food Guide 
and/or any successor guide. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Klassen Jeninga 

 
(16-196) That Board Policy ES-1.7, Nutrition, be approved as revised. 

CARRIED 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Abraham 
 Seconded by: Trustee Caruso 

 
(16-197) That the Program Review Committee Report, dated 

October 27, 2016, be received for information. 
CARRIED 

 
11.1.4 Audit Committee Report 

 
Trustee D. Lloyd reported that the committee met on 
September 15, 2016 to receive the external auditors’ summary of 
school audits, and reviews of the annual auditor engagement 
letter and audit planning letter, as well as the 2015-2016 External 
Audit Plan (Attachment 1 to the report).  An internal audit update 
report was provided, as was an update on the Ministry website for 
leading practices, and highlights of the Ministry of Education 
Memorandum, Increasing Consistency Amongst Regional Internal 
Audit Teams.  The annual Ministry of Education, Audit Committee 
Self-Assessment forms were distributed to committee members 
for completion. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee D. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Lynch-Taylor 

 
(16-198) That the 2015-2016 External Audit Plan be approved. 

CARRIED 
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It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee D. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Patterson 

 
(16-199) That the Audit Committee Report, dated October 27, 2016, be 

received for information. 
 

Following discussion, Chairperson Abraham confirmed the 
second sentence in the third paragraph of the report will be 
revised as follows:  Trustees Committee members asked for 
clarification . . .  

 
Further information was provided to trustees regarding the school 
cash online program and the use of P-Cards. 

 
The motion was .............................................................. CARRIED 
 
The Board recessed at 8:50 p.m.  The Board reconvened at 
9:01 p.m. 
 

11.2 DECISION REPORTS 
 
11.2.1 Awards and Scholarships – Adam Scott Collegiate 

Vocational Institute 
 
S. Girardi, Superintendent of Student Achievement reported that 
the Morley family would like to establish a scholarship award to be 
known as the Morley Family Science Scholarship.  The award will 
be in the form of $1,000.00 a year for ten years.  This award may 
be split into two $500.00 awards or one $1,000.00 award at the 
school’s discretion based on the candidates. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Kitney 
 Seconded by: Trustee Bonner 

 
(16-200) That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board approve 

the establishment of the Morley Family Science Scholarship, 
to be provided annually for ten years in the amount of 
$1,000.00, or two awards of $500.00, to a graduating 
student(s) of Adam Scott Collegiate Vocational Institute who 
has met the award criteria. 

CARRIED 
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11.2.2 Awards and Scholarships – Clarington Central Secondary 
School 
 
J. Tompkins, Superintendent of Student Achievement reported 
that Karen Lee McKay wishes to establish a graduation award to 
be known as the Patrick McKay Memorial Scholarship Award in 
the amount of $400.00 per year for two graduating students of 
Clarington Central Secondary School. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Bobka 
 Seconded by: Trustee Lynch-Taylor 

 
(16-201) That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board approve 

the establishment of the Patrick McKay Memorial 
Scholarship Award in the amount of $400.00 to be presented 
annually to two graduating students of Clarington Central 
Secondary School who have met the award criteria. 

CARRIED 
 

11.2.3 Awards and Scholarships – Norwood District High School 
 
G. Ingram, Superintendent of Student Achievement reported that 
the family of Jack Stewart wish to establish a bursary fund in his 
memory known as the J.J. Stewart Memorial Bursary in the 
amount of a minimum of $500.00 per year to a graduating student 
of Norwood District High School. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Lynch-Taylor 
 Seconded by: Trustee Patterson 

 
(16-202) That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board approve 

the establishment of the J.J. Stewart Memorial Bursary in the 
amount of a minimum of $500.00 per year to be presented 
annually to a graduating student of Norwood District High 
School who has met the award criteria. 

CARRIED 
 

11.2.4 Awards and Scholarships – Norwood District High School 
 
G. Ingram, Superintendent of Student Achievement reported that 
the Norwood Legion Branch 300, Ladies Auxiliary wish to 
establish a bursary fund known as the Norwood Legion 
Branch 300, Ladies Auxiliary Bursary in the amount of a minimum 
of $100.00 per year to one or more graduating female students of 
Norwood District High School. 
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It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee Klassen Jeninga 
 Seconded by: Trustee Patterson 

 
(16-203) That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board approve 

the establishment of the Norwood Legion Branch 300, Ladies 
Auxiliary Bursary in the amount of a minimum of $100.00 per 
year to be presented annually to one or more graduating 
female students of Norwood District High School who have 
met the award criteria. 

CARRIED 
 

11.2.5 Awards and Scholarships – Norwood District High School 
 
G. Ingram, Superintendent of Student Achievement reported that 
Sharpe Physiotherapy of Havelock wish to establish a bursary 
fund known as the Sharpe Physiotherapy Bursary in the amount 
of a minimum of $100.00 per year. 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee D. Lloyd 

 
(16-204) That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board approve 

the establishment of the Sharpe Physiotherapy Bursary in 
the amount of a minimum of $100.00 per year to be presented 
annually to a graduating student or graduating students of 
Norwood District High School who have met the award 
criteria. 

CARRIED 
 

11.2.6 Education Council of Associations for Benefits and 
Provincial Benefits Update 
 
C. Arnew, Superintendent of Business and Corporate Services 
reported on the last round of provincial bargaining provided for 
significant changes in how employee benefits would be provided 
to unionized employees in Ontario school boards. 
 
All of the unions for the unionized employees will either be 
establishing or joining an Employee Life and Health Trust (ELHT). 
 
The Board has been discussing the impact of this change on its 
ability to continue to provide sustainable, competitive and affordable 
benefit plans for its management and non-union employees. 

 
Letter of Agreement #8 within the central principals’ deal, provided 
for management and non-union employees to join/partner with the 
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three Principals’ Associations, to jointly provide benefit plans to 
Boards’ management and non-union employees. 
 
By having the option to join a group of up to 15,000 employees, 
the Board mitigates the risk of providing benefit plans to a smaller 
management and non-union group of employees that was 
previously pooled with all employee groups. 
 
The Ontario Public School Boards’ Association (OPSBA) 
memorandum sent to Boards in August (Appendix A to the report) 
outlined the situation for benefit coverage of non-union and 
management staff.  Details on the Draft Terms of Reference for 
the Education Council of Associations for Benefits (ECAB) were 
provided (Appendix B to the report). 
 
Discussion of this matter occurred amongst Board members, with 
specific questions raised regarding the nature of the Board’s 
autonomy within the OPSBA structure, the ramifications for the 
Board with respect to this agreement, and impact to the Board 
and employees should the Board decline approval.  
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Lynch-Taylor 
 Seconded by: Trustee Patterson 

 
(16-205) That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board approve 

the transfer of benefits for its remaining non-union staff, to 
the provincial non-union Employee Life and Health Trust 
(ELHT) for principals, vice-principals and other non-union 
staff in accordance with the Letter of Agreement #8 of the 
Memorandum of Settlement between the Trustees’/School 
Board Associations and Principals’ and Vice Principals’ 
Associations and the Crown. 

CARRIED 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Kitney 

 
(16-206) That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 

authorize the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association 
(OPSBA) to develop the terms, and execute the trust 
agreement for non-union Employee Life and Health Trust 
(ELHT), with the other trustee associations, the provincial 
government and the Education Council of Associations for 
Benefits (ECAB), to provide employee benefits to all 
non-unionized employees of school boards in the Province 
of Ontario. 

CARRIED
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12. ONTARIO PUBLIC SCHOOL BOARDS’ ASSOCIATION (OPSBA) REPORT 
 
Trustee Angela Lloyd, the Board’s Delegate Member of OPSBA, drew attention 
to a recent visit by the Minister of Education, Mitzie Hunter, to delegate members 
of OPSBA, as well as a recent publication by that organization publicizing 
positive stories within public education. 
 

13. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
13.1 The Honourable Mitzie Hunter regarding the Special Education 

Funding Formula 
 
Correspondence was received from The Honourable Mitzie Hunter, 
Minister of Education, to Chairperson of the Board Cathy Abraham 
regarding the Special Education Funding Formula. 
 

13.2 Bluewater District School Board regarding the Truth and 
Reconciliation Commission of Canada – Calls to Action Report 
 
Correspondence was received from Ron Motz, Chair of the Bluewater 
District School Board, addressed to The Honourable Mitzie Hunter, 
Minister of Education, regarding the Truth and Reconciliation Commission 
of Canada – Calls to Action Report. 
 

13.3 Peel District School Board regarding Ministry of Education Top-up 
Funding 
 
Correspondence was received from Janet McDougald, Chair of the Peel 
District School Board, addressed to The Honourable Mitzie Hunter, 
Minister of Education, regarding Ministry of Education Top-up Funding. 
 

It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee Bonner 

 
(16-207) That the correspondence for the October 27, 2016 Board meeting be 

received for information. 
CARRIED 

 
14. INFORMATION ITEMS – CONSENT ITEMS 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Klassen Jeninga 
 Seconded by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
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(16-208) That the following agenda items for the October 27, 2016 Board meeting be 
received for information: 
 
 Item 14.1 Poverty Intervention Fund 
 Item 14.2 Parent Involvement Committee Report 
 Item 14.3 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Report 
 Item 14.4 Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Committee Report 
 Item 14.5 Special Education Advisory Committee Report 
 Item 14.6 Program Review Committee Report 
 Item 14.7 Student Transportation Services of Central Ontario (STSCO) 

Governance Committee Report 
 
Requests were made by trustees to pull the following reports for comment and/or 
discussion: 
  
 Item 14.1 Poverty Intervention Fund 
 Item 14.2 Parent Involvement Committee Report 
 Item 14.3 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Report 
 Item 14.4 Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Committee Report 
 
The motion was ...................................................................................... CARRIED 
 
14.1 Poverty Intervention Fund 

 
Superintendent S. Girardi provided an overview of Poverty Intervention 
Fund allocation and spending, with examples of how funds are used as 
shared by schools. 
 

14.2 Parent Involvement Committee Report 
 
Trustee J. Klassen Jeninga reported that the committee met on 
September 19, 2016 to receive a Director’s update on current Board and 
provincial news, a review of the 2016 annual parent conference planning 
status, a Parent Involvement Funds update, and an update on the Parent 
Guides for Learning Refresh Project. 
 
Trustee Klassen Jeninga commended staff on the success of the parent 
conference, with particular emphasis on the keynote speaker, 
Dr. Ian Manion, and the benefits of having the location of the event take 
place in various regions of the Board.  It was also noted that the Parent 
Guides for Learning Refresh Project will use both print and digital 
communication strategies to provide more, and improved, resources to 
parent communities. 
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14.3 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Report 
 
Committee Chairperson M. Lynch-Taylor reported that the committee met 
on October 5, 2016 to receive an update on events and activities 
undertaken by the Board and information regarding the First Nation, Métis 
and Inuit Education Action Plan and the Truth and Reconciliation Ministry 
Curriculum Committee. 
 
Trustee Lynch-Taylor drew attention to the strong focus on Indigenous 
Education planned for the February Principals, Vice-principals and System 
Managers Conference, the Director’s decision to provide an opportunity to 
hear directly from students through the Indigenous Student Advisory 
Committee, and the first Treaties Recognition Week in Ontario from 
November 6 to 12, 2016. 
 

14.4 Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Committee Report 
 
Committee Co-chairperson S. Patterson spoke to discussion held at the 
October 4, 2016 committee meeting regarding growth in staff, student and 
family participation from KPR this year at the Pride Parade, increased 
accessibility at the event, and success of the KPR information booth. 
Attention was drawn to KPR Guidelines for the Accommodation of 
Transgender and Gender Diverse Staff and Students (Appendices A to H 
of the report), and KPR Sites and Non-KPR Rented Venue Guidelines 
developed to enhance staff and well-being and a sense of safety while 
working in KPR sites and community spaces, and to highlight important 
booking considerations, accessibility features and the historical context of 
non-KPR buildings. 
 
Further information was provided by Committee Co-chairperson D. Lloyd, 
who spoke to First Nations Women’s Day on October 4, 2016, KPR’s 
Multifaith Accommodation Guidelines, a letter from the Ministry of 
Education regarding the collection of data related to a student’s sex and 
gender, and upcoming professional development sessions. 
 

15. BOARD MEMBER ADDITIONS 
 
Trustee D. Lloyd spoke to the Change of Season celebration, an exchange of 
culture with our Indigenous students and community, at Ridpath Junior Public 
School in Lakefield. 
 
Trustee Patterson informed trustees of the building of new outhouses by a 
Grade 10 Courtice Secondary School construction class for the Havelock District 
Snowmobile Club, a presentation at Campbellford District High School by singer 
Robb Nash who is sharing his story and message “Don’t wait until you die to start 
to live”, and an Embracing Social Media dinner at Norwood District High School 
with guest speaker and sessions related to the impact of social media on 
students and families.  
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Trustee Klassen Jeninga spoke to the Northumberland Land Trust annual gala 
dinner at Dalewood Golf Club and the Laurie Lawson Outdoor Education Centre, 
as well as Dale Road Senior Public School students who have walked 44 km. 
collectively to date in pursuit of their goal to walk the length of the 401 by the end 
of the school year. 
 
Trustee A. Lloyd reported that the Millbrook / South Cavan Public School’s Apps 
and Activities event held to focus on finding a balance between technology and 
physical activity was well attended. 
 
Trustee Dickson reported that East Northumberland Secondary School has had 
another very successful Terry Fox Run, Spring Valley Public School students and 
staff raised $4,440, and Murray Centennial Public School raised over 
$6,000, their best effort to date.  Trustee Dickson also drew attention to the 
success of the Colborne Public School Drumline and Festival of Trees 
fundraising event, and that Northumberland Hills Public School is working hard at 
the beginning stages of their playground project. 
 
Trustee Caruso informed trustees that he attended undergrad awards for student 
achievement at Port Hope High School and that Camborne Public School had 
raised $1,300 for the Terry Fox Foundation.  In honour of Local Government 
Week, Northumberland County invited schools to participate in a Paint the 
Plough campaign and Grade 5 and 6 students at North Hope Central Public 
School, as well as parent volunteers, were commended for their participation in 
the campaign. 
 
Trustee Kitney provided background on the Morley Family Science Scholarship 
approved by the Board in Item 11.2.1, Awards and Scholarships – Adam Scott 
Collegiate Vocational Institute.  Ken Morley, an alumni of Adam Scott Collegiate 
VocationaI Institute from 1969 to 1974, advised that he was setting up a 
scholarship in the amount of $1,000 each year for ten years, and that he would 
also be donating to the Science Department in the amount of $25,000.  However, 
the actual cheque came in for $60,000, $10,000 for the scholarship and $50,000 
to upgrade the Science Department.  
 
Trustee Bobka reported that she and Student Trustee Shomar attended a 
fundraiser at Bowmanville High School for the school’s Me to We trip to Tanzania 
in March 2017.  The event was called Meet the Last Maasai Warriors featuring 
an African themed dinner followed by two Maasai Warriors dressed in traditional 
outfits who spoke about growing up in a small Maasai village in Kenya. 
 
Chairperson Abraham supplemented Trustee Caruso’s report regarding Local 
Government Week, advising that trustees are always available to speak with 
Grade 5 and 10 students regarding important aspects of their job, and also noted 
KPR’s participation in the September Pride Parade. 
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16. FUTURE MEETING DATES 
 
Chairperson Cathy Abraham drew attention to the future meeting dates listed in 
the Board agenda.  It was confirmed that the Audit Committee meeting is not 
being held on November 10, with the new date to be determined, and that the 
suggestion to move the December regular meeting of the Board to December 15, 
2016 would be considered. 
 

17. QUESTION PERIOD 
 
Chairperson Cathy Abraham opened the meeting to questions from the floor. 
 

18. REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE IN-CAMERA SESSION 
 
18.1 Resource Committee Report – Recommendations 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 

 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Bobka 
 Seconded by: Trustee A. Lloyd 

 
 (16-209) That the Resource Committee Report, Agenda Item IC.6.2, 

Recommendation 1, considered in the Committee of the Whole Board 
meeting on Thursday, October 27, 2016 be approved. 

CARRIED 
 

It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee Bobka 
 Seconded by: Trustee A. Lloyd 

 
 (16-210) That the Resource Committee Report, Agenda Item IC.6.2, 

Recommendation 2, considered in the Committee of the Whole Board 
meeting on Thursday, October 27, 2016 be approved. 

CARRIED 
 

It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee Bobka 
 Seconded by: Trustee A. Lloyd 

 
 (16-211) That the Resource Committee Report, Agenda Item IC.6.2, 

Recommendation 3, considered in the Committee of the Whole Board 
meeting on Thursday, October 27, 2016 be approved. 

CARRIED 
 

It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee Bobka 
 Seconded by: Trustee A. Lloyd 

 
 (16-212) That the Resource Committee Report, Agenda Item IC.6.2, 

Recommendation 4, considered in the Committee of the Whole Board 
meeting on Thursday, October 27, 2016 be approved. 

CARRIED
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It was, 
 Moved by: Trustee Bobka 
 Seconded by: Trustee A. Lloyd 

 
(16-213) That prior to the next budget, administration provide a report to the 

committee on stand alone schools and transportation. 
CARRIED 

 
18.2 Student Transportation Services of Central Ontario (STSCO) 

Governance Committee Report – Recommendation 1 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee Bobka 
 Seconded by: Trustee A. Lloyd 

 
(16-214) That the Board approve the transfer of all Phoenix Transportation 

bus routes under contract through the 2018-2019 school year, to 
Jean Jacques Campeau Inc. (Campeau School Buses), effective 
October 30, 2016 for a 3 year period. 

CARRIED 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT 
 
It was, 

 Moved by: Trustee A. Lloyd 
 Seconded by: Trustee D. Lloyd 

 
(16-215) That the meeting be adjourned (10:21 p.m.). 

CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________ 
Cathy Abraham 

Chairperson of the Board 
 
 
 

____________________ 
W.R. (Rusty) Hick 

Director of Education 
and Secretary of the Board 

 
 
Kawartha Pine Ridge 
District School Board 
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Student Trustee Report 
 

Tenzin Shomar 
 

Introduction 
 
This month, many schools across KPR took part in Remembrance Day ceremonies. 
From dance performances to music renditions, our students did an excellent job in 
paying tribute to the brave men and women who have and will continue to defend this 
country. I would like to commend all those involved in these ceremonies for an 
incredible job well done. 
 
Courtice Rotary Presentation 
 
On October 28, I was honoured to make a presentation to the Rotary Club of Courtice. It 
was great speak about my role as Student Trustee, as well as student leadership and 
student voice across the school board. I thoroughly enjoyed speaking to Rotarians and I 
would like to thank Trustee Abraham for inviting me to their meeting. 
 
Student Leadership Group 
 
The Student Leadership Group (SLG) led two Elementary Leadership Days on 
November 21, one at the Ganaraska Forest Centre and one at Peterborough Alternative 
and Continuing Education Centre at PCVS. Throughout the day, members of the SLG 
organized leadership activities for Grade 6-8 students. The day was filled with learning 
and excitement and I have no doubt that participants will take what they learned back to 
their elementary schools in order to better their school communities. 
 
Ontario Student Trustees’ Association 
 
I was proud to attend the Ontario Student Trustees’ Association’s Fall General Meeting 
from November 17-20 in Toronto. The conference was an amazing learning experience 
and it was great to meet with my fellow Student Trustees across the province. One key 
element of the conference was the launch of a video called “By Any Measure”. The 
video was created in partnership with the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association 
and focused on accessibility initiatives in schools throughout Ontario.  
 
Conclusion 
 
On a final note, many students across the board, the province, and the country are 
preparing to make the voyage to France to commemorate the 100th Anniversary of the 
Battle of Vimy Ridge. While we will always remember the sacrifices of those in uniform 
on November 11, students making the trip will be continuing to remember them in April 
as they represent Canada in Europe. I look forward to hearing all about the wonderful 
experiences that these students will undoubtedly take part in when they return.  
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
RESOURCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
The committee met on November 9, 2016 and reports as follows. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present: Trustees Angela Lloyd (Committee Chairperson), Cathy Abraham 

(Chairperson of the Board), Sarah Bobka (Vice-chairperson of the Board), 
Wayne Bonner, Cyndi Dickson and Rose Kitney.  

 
Trustees Jaine Klassen Jeninga and Mary Lynch-Taylor attended via 
teleconference. 

 
Regrets: Trustee Diane Lloyd. 
 
Others: C. Arnew, A. Foster, B. Hamilton, L. Piccinin, and J. Nahrgang were also 

present.  
 
Energy Management Report 2015-2016 
 
Gerri-Lynn Watt, Supervisor of Projects/Energy provided an overview of energy 
management for the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board.  In 2014 the Board 
created a five-year Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan, outlining 
targets for the implementation of energy conservation initiatives.  The targets are related 
to the use of design, construction and retrofit strategies, to improve energy efficiency.   
 
In compliance with the Green Energy Act, the Ministry of Education created the Utility 
Consumption Database (UCD), to track data annually on electricity, natural gas, fuel oil, 
propane and in the near future, water.  This data, and the 5 Year Energy Conservation 
and Demand Management Plan are posted on the Board website.   
 
For the past two years the Toronto and Region Conservation Authority has conducted a 
comparison of utility data and energy efficiency across all school boards using data from 
the Utility Consumption Database.  The results of this analysis have been published, 
and the Board has been recognized both years as one of the top 10 energy efficient 
school boards in the province.   
 
The Board participates with other school boards in various energy forums to help 
manage costs. 
 
Various energy initiatives currently being undertaken by the Board were discussed and 
the benefit of these initiatives quantified for trustees. 
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2015-2016 Year-end Financial Variance Report 
 
Chris Arnew, Superintendent of Business and Corporates Services, reviewed the Year-
end Report, based on September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016 financial activity, as well 
as school enrolments as at October 31, 2015 and March 31, 2016.  
 
For the fiscal year 2015-2016, the year-end surplus of $3.7 million compared to a 
budgeted surplus of $2.18 million, for a favourable variance of $1.5 million.  The year-
end consolidated compliance deficit of $3.0 million compares to a budgeted compliance 
deficit of $0.8 million, for an unfavourable variance of $2.2 million.  Superintendent 
Arnew explained that while there was a slight increase in enrolment and total revenue is 
up, total expenditures have also increased, largely due to a negotiated 1% salary 
increase.   
 
Bruce Hamilton, Controller of Business and Corporate Services, provided an overview 
of variances and clarified the following overspent items:  occasional teachers, $2.1 
million, supply education assistants, $1.9 million, casual custodians, $1.0 million, supply 
early childhood educators, $450,000.  Some discussion occurred regarding 
administration’s managing savings in the current budget year, and some pre-planning 
discussions with trustees, leading up to the 2017-2018 budget.  Further analysis will be 
conducted by the finance team prior to those budget planning sessions, in order that we 
better understand the differences between funding received and expenses incurred, to 
support our current model. 
 
L. Piccinin, Senior Manager of Human Resource Services, spoke to the challenges for 
school boards related to new sick time structures.  
 
2015-2016 Accumulated Surplus/Deficit and Deferred Revenue Report  
 
Superintendent Arnew summarized the description of various Reserves while he and 
Bruce Hamilton reviewed the recommended allocation of funds from Reserves for 2015-
2016, in accordance with allowable use.   
 
The Public Sector Accounting Board and Ministry reporting requirements mandate 
boards to set aside certain unspent grant allocations until they are spent on their 
intended purpose.  These externally restricted amounts are reported as Deferred 
Revenue.   
 
The 2015-2016 Draft Audited Financial Statements will be presented to the Audit 
Committee on November 15, 2016. 
 
A motion was adopted that Accumulated Surplus transfers be approved, as detailed in 
the 2015-2016 Accumulated Surplus/Deficit and Deferred Revenue Report, dated 
November 9, 2016 (Attachment 1). 
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Portable Replacement Program 
 
Superintendent Arnew provided an overview of the Portable Replacement Program.  
The Board currently has 88 portables on school sites, the newest being purchased in 
1997.  Despite the Board’s strategic accommodation strategy, senior administration 
supports that portables will be required in the long term, as demographics shift.  The 
average cost of a new portable is $120,000.  A four year replacement program bringing 
ten new portables per year would require an annual expenditure of $1.2 million, and 
could be amortized over a 20 year period.  Funding is available from approved capital 
plans.  The current portables in the best condition would be retained (Attachment 2). 
 
A motion was adopted that the Portable Replacement Program be approved, as 
detailed in the Portable Replacement Program Report, dated November 9, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
1. That Accumulated Surplus transfers be approved, as detailed in the 2015-2016 

Accumulated Surplus/Deficit and Deferred Revenue Report, dated November 9, 
2016. 

 
2. That the Portable Replacement Program be approved, as detailed in the Portable 

Replacement Program Report, dated November 9, 2016. 
 
3. That the Resource Committee Report, dated November 24, 2016, be received for 

information. 
 
 
Angela Lloyd 
Committee Chairperson 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

TO:  Resource Committee 
 
TOPIC: 2015-2016 Accumulated Surplus/Deficit and Deferred  

Revenue Report 
 
INITIATOR: Bruce Hamilton, Controller, Business and Corporate Services 
  Chris Arnew, Superintendent of Business and Corporate Services 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) standard requires that Internally 

Restricted Reserves are to be included in the Board’s Accumulated Surplus.  
Therefore, transfers to or from these Reserve funds will not have an impact on the 
determination of the Surplus or Deficit for the fiscal period.  For Ministry and external 
reporting, the annual Surplus cannot be increased or decreased by moving amounts to 
or from Reserve funds.  The Accumulated Surplus represents the sum of all prior 
annual surpluses (or deficits).  The Accumulated Surplus is subdivided into three 
components, which are to be used to determine budget compliance on a go-forward 
basis.  These categories are: 

 
• Available for Compliance - Unappropriated 

  This portion of the Surplus will be available to address any in-year deficit, 
in accordance with Ministry Compliance requirements for Balanced Budget 
Determination. 
 

• Available for Compliance - Internally Appropriated 
This portion of the Surplus is earmarked, through Board decisions, for specific 
purposes.  It will be available to address any in-year deficit, in accordance with 
Ministry Compliance requirements for Balanced Budget Determination. 
 

• Unavailable for Compliance  
This portion of the Surplus is not available to address any in-year deficit, as per 
Compliance Report requirements for Balanced Budget Determination. 

 
2. PSAB and Ministry reporting requirements mandate boards to set aside certain 

unspent grant allocations until they are spent on their intended purpose.  In addition, 
the use of any Proceeds of Disposition realized from the sale of board property are 
restricted.  Both these externally restricted amounts are reported as Deferred 
Revenue. 

 
3. The description and purpose of Internally Appropriated Accumulated Surplus and 

Deferred Revenue funds are included in Appendix A. 
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STATUS 
 
4. The 2015-2016 activity for Accumulated Surplus is summarized in the Year-end 

Financial Variance Report Appendix.  The details of this activity and the recommended 
allocations are: 

 
 Deferred Revenue  

All transfers to and from Deferred Revenue are mandated by PSAB and Ministry 
regulations, and do not require a board motion. 

 
 Legislated Capital 

Educational Development Charges (EDC) 
 

Total decrease of $2,995,666 is comprised of:  
 $993,896 EDC revenue received from the Municipality of Clarington 
 $15,563 interest attributed to the EDC balance 
 ($3,971,630) transferred to revenue to fund eligible capital costs 
 ($33,495) transferred to revenue to fund eligible operating costs 

 
The August 31, 2016 EDC Deferred Revenue balance of $593,970 is for the County of 

 Northumberland.  
 

Retrofitting School Space for Child Care 
 

This funding provides support and stability to existing child care centres as they  
transition to a different age group of children, once all four and five-year olds are in full 
day Early Learning programs.  Possible uses of these monies include re-purposing 
Best Start space to accommodate toddlers, or moving a child care centre from the 
community into a school. 
 
Funding had been provided over a three-year period. By August 31, 2016, $171,766 
was expended.  The balance of $385,123 has been set aside in Deferred Revenue for 
completion of these and other approved child care projects. 

 
School Renewal 

 
The decrease to this Deferred Revenue of $848,002 reflects the amount that 
expenditures exceeded the renewal allocation in 2015-2016. 
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School Condition 
 
The method in which School Condition Improvement funds are flowed to the Board 
changed in 2015-2016. Funds are received once an expense has been incurred, 
rather than in advance. Therefore, there will no longer be a deferred revenue 
component to School Condition Improvement funds. The balance of $12,673 was 
spent during 2015-2016. 
 
The Board’s 2015-2016 allocation was $13,543,795. The Board spent $9,096,762 of 
this allocation in 2015-2016. The remaining unspent allocation of $4,447,033 is 
available to support capital expenditures in future years and will be receivable 
following the reporting of these expenditures in future reporting cycles (March 31st and 
August 31st). 
 
Legislated Operating 
Education Programs – Other (EPO) 
 
The increase to this Deferred Revenue of $327,400 reflects the amount that revenue 
transfers from the Ministry exceeded expenditures during 2015-2016. 

 
5. Accumulated Surplus 
 

The Board’s 2015-2016 Annual Surplus is $3,724,834.   As noted in the 2015-2016 
Year-end Variance Report, a portion of this variance is a result of changes to 
Employee Future Benefits and is not available for Compliance.  The required changes 
to these Externally Appropriated Surplus are: 
 
Externally Appropriated Surplus (Not Available for Compliance) 

  
Ministry Balanced Budget requirements mandate that a portion of the Board’s 
Accumulated Surplus is not available for compliance determination purposes.  This 
Externally Appropriated Surplus earmarks funds to address the amortization of Future 
Employee Benefits, the restriction of School Generated Funds, and the recognition of  
revenue for land purchases.  Details of the 2015-2016 activity in these areas are as 
follows: 
 
Future Employee Benefits are comprised of three components, each with their own 
amortization requirements.  
 
The Retirement Gratuity liability of $26,871,308, as at August 31, 2015, was actuarially 
determined and is to be amortized over the estimated remaining service life (ERSL) to 
a maximum of 9 years. The 2015-2016 decrease of $2,985,701 is comprised of the 
1/9th amortization of the opening liability, based on the August 31, 2015 actuarial 
review of the plan. The liability at August 31, 2016 is $23,885,607. 
 
 
Retirement Health Care Benefits were actuarially assessed to be a liability of $501,753 
as at August 31, 2015, and are to be amortized over a maximum of seven years.  The 
2015-2016 decrease of $71,679 is comprised of the 1/7th amortization, based on the 
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August 31, 2015 actuarial review of the plan. The liability at August 31, 2016 is 
$430,074. 
 
The final component of Employee Future Benefits is the Liability for Workers 
Compensation (WSIB).  The School Boards’ Cooperative performed the actuarial 
assessment and determined the liability at August 31, 2015 to be $2,346,459.  The 
Ministry financial information system did not require the Board to allocate a portion of 
its surplus to this liability in 2015-2016.  
 
School Generated Funds (SGF) 
 
SGF are funds raised at the school level, and are monies that the Board cannot utilize 
when considering Budget Compliance.  The decrease of $288,434 reflects the in-year 
excess of Expenditures over Revenue, and is comprised of: 

  

  Elementary SGF   ($109,780) 

  Secondary SGF  ($178,154) 

  Foundations             ($      500) 

  Total  ($288,434) 

 
Internally Appropriated Accumulated Surplus (Reserves) 

 
 Retirement Gratuities 
 

The Board is required to provide for the gratuity liability amortization expense, the 
annually determined interest expense, and any changes in actuarial estimates that 
might arise.  In 2015-2016, the budget for this required component was $1,030,451. 
The actual expense amounted to ($172,511).  The Reserve is to assist with minimizing 
the impact on future budgets. 

 
Future Classroom Expenditures 

 
The decrease of $38,135 reflects the net decrease in the School Rollover. 

 
Community and Training Development Centre (CTDC) Accumulated Surplus 

 
The CTDC is considered a related party and, as such, their financial results are 
consolidated in the Board’s Financial Statements.  CTDC has control over the use of 
their Accumulated Surplus and, therefore, it is considered as Internally Appropriated.  
The in-year increase of $12,181 reflects the 2015-2016 CTDC surplus. 
 
 
Field Improvements 
 
These funds are earmarked to support field and track improvements.  The increase in 
the year of $165,000 reflects the unspent 2015-2016 budget of $140,000, and the 
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annual amount of $25,000 for the Thomas A. Stewart Secondary School playing field 
under the Joint Agreement with the City of Peterborough. 

 
Facilities Improvement 

 
The in-year decrease of $955,837 represents the amount expenditures exceeded the 
2015-2016 Budget.  The balance of $5,324,400 is retained to support expenditures in 
future periods.   
 
Facilities Improvement Non-instructional 

 
The decrease of $33,825 reflects the amount expenditures exceeded the 2015-2016 
budget. 

 
Information and Communications Infrastructure 
 
The in-year decrease of $800,000 represents the 2015-2016 Budgeted Deficit 
Allocation.  The balance of $4,526,503 is retained in the Information and 
Communications infrastructure to support expenditures in future periods.   
 
The 2015-2016 Budget provided $2,172,359 for the Technology Plan, and actual 
expenditures were $2,805,851. 
 
Special Education 
 
The Board approved supporting the Self Regulating Classroom during 2015-2016 in 
the amount of $250,000. 
 
General Operating 

 
The decrease of $1,115,126 is $29,874 less than the approved budget amount of 
$1,145,000.  This will allow for continued support of future Budgets in the amount of 
$3,885,401. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That Accumulated Surplus transfers be approved, as detailed in the 2015-2016 

Accumulated Surplus/Deficit and Deferred Revenue Report, dated November 9, 2016. 
 
 
 
Chris Arnew 
Superintendent of Business and Corporate Services 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

Description of Internally Appropriated Accumulated Surplus and  
Deferred Revenue Reserve Funds 

 
Internally Appropriated Accumulated Surplus  
 
1. General Operating 
 

This Reserve is used to cover unexpected or unbudgeted expenditures or 
initiatives which may arise in a particular year, or to provide funding for other 
approved one-time expenditures.  It can also be used to assist with the annual 
budget setting process.  Any surplus or deficit arising during the year is deposited 
or withdrawn from this Reserve.  As a general rule, it would be desirable to 
maintain the balance of this fund at an amount equal to 1% of the Board=s total 
Operating Budget.  The Board has adopted an approach where these funds are 
used to assist future budgets in a planned way. 

 
2. Facilities Improvement   
 

This Reserve is used to facilitate planning and completion of approved and 
needed improvements to our schools and sites, in accordance with Board 
priorities.  

3. Field Improvements 
 

This Reserve provides funds to support field restorations.  On an annual basis, 
an amount is budgeted for field restorations, and any under or over spending is 
transferred to or from this Reserve.  The Board is committed to allocate $25,000 
each year for future maintenance of the Thomas A. Stewart Secondary School 
field, through the Joint Agreement with the City of Peterborough.  This annual 
amount is transferred to this Reserve. 

 
4. Facilities Improvements: Non-instructional 
 

This account provides for the major repairs to administrative buildings.  On an 
annual basis, an amount is budgeted for the repair of administrative buildings.  
Any under or over spending is transferred to or from this Reserve. 

 
5. Information and Communications Infrastructure 
 

These funds are utilized to maintain technologies throughout the system, 
including networking costs, school public address and communication systems, 
and central computer hardware and software purchases.  An annual budget is 
provided for replacing/upgrading the technologies noted above.  When required, 
this Reserve is used to fund the excess of required expenditures over the annual 
budgeted amount, and vice versa.   
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6. Retirement Gratuities 
 

This Reserve serves to assist in managing the significant swings in cash flow 
associated with retirement gratuity expenditures.  The Board annually budgets 
gratuity expenses at an amount needed to fund the gratuity payments when 
made.  Actual payouts for retirees vary significantly each year, based upon 
economic trends, pension early retirement windows, and personal situations.  
The Board has adopted an approach which will fund the Retirement Gratuity 
Liability over the next ten years, such that no negative impact in future budgets 
will occur.  

7. Special Education (Internally Restricted) 
 

This Board controlled Reserve allows the Board to accommodate new  
in-year Special Education needs, which materialize after approval of the annual 
Budget.   

 
8. Workplace Safety and Insurance Board 
 

The Board is a self-insured employer, under Schedule 2 of the Workplace Safety 
and Insurance Board (WSIB) legislation.  The Board funds current year payments 
through the annual Budget, as part of employee benefit expenditures.  
Expenditures to date have been for lost wages, medical, and rehabilitation costs. 
The actuarial projected liabilities for lost wages and claim settlements are 
explained in the Notes to the Board=s Financial Statements.  The Board 
purchases stop loss insurance that will cover any catastrophic claim that exceeds 
$500,000.  The purpose of this Reserve is to protect the Board from the impact of 
their deductible component (the first $500,000 per claim) resulting from any 
major claim.  

 
9. Future Classroom Expenditures 
 

Administrative Regulation BA-4.5.2, School Budgets, states that unspent class 
supplies and equipment budgets, to a maximum of 10% of the annual budget at 
the school level, may be transferred to the subsequent fiscal period.  Any 
transfers in excess of this amount must be reflected in a fiscal plan which has 
been reviewed and supported by the appropriate superintendent of student 
achievement.  These funds are placed in the Classroom Expenditure Reserve at 
fiscal year-end, and can be used in future fiscal periods at the discretion of the 
school, or in accordance with the approved plan for those dollars in excess of the 
maximum allowable discretionary amount. 
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10. Accumulated Operating Surplus – Related Party 
 

The Community Training and Development Centre (CTDC) is considered a 
related party and, as such, their financial results are consolidated in the Board=s 
Financial Statements.  CTDC has control over the use of their Accumulated 
Surplus, and it is therefore considered as Internally Appropriated. 
 

Deferred Revenue - Capital 
 
11. Proceeds of Disposition 
 

Boards are required to allocate all proceeds of sales and disposition of property, 
net of allowable expenses, to the Proceeds of Disposition Reserve.  Allowable 
expenses include commissions, legal fees, and other adjustments with respect to 
the sale of the property.  This Deferred Revenue can be used for: 
< acquisition of school sites 
< school buildings or renovations to existing buildings   
< school furniture and equipment 
< library materials for the initial equipping of school libraries 

 
12. School Renewal; School Condition; Daycare Retrofitting 
 

Each year the Ministry provides funds to school boards to cover the cost of major 
renovations and facility improvements.  Any unspent funds must be set aside for 
use on appropriate projects in future periods. 

 
13. Education Development Charges (EDC) 
 

The Education Act requires boards that have passed EDC By-laws to establish 
EDC Deferred Funds.  All EDC revenues received from municipalities are to be 
deposited in the EDC Deferred Fund.  These funds can be used for:  
< acquiring land to be used to provide pupil accommodation (including interest 

costs and acquisition study costs) 
< providing services to the land or otherwise prepare the site so that a building 

may be constructed to provide pupil accommodation 
< preparing and distributing an EDC Background Study 

EDC Reserves are not to be used to fund the cost of any buildings 
 

Operating 
 

14. Educational Programs Other (EPO) and Mental Health Leader 
 
 These occur as the Ministry of Education has flowed money to the school board 

for specific operating priorities, which had not been spent by the year-end. 
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Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 

TO: Resource Committee 
 
TOPIC: Portable Replacement Program 
 
INITIATOR: Chris Arnew, Superintendent of Business and Corporate Services 
  Mark Allen, Manager, Projects and Central Services 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board currently has 88 portables on 

school sites. 
 
2. This number has decreased from 285 in 1998 at the time of amalgamation. 
 
3. The newest portable purchased dates back to 1997, and there is currently no 

unamortized balance reflected in our capital inventory. 
 
STATUS 
 
4. Despite the KPRDSB strategic accommodation strategy, senior administration 

still supports that portables will be required in the long term, as demographic 
shifts will persist. 

 
5. The inventory of suitable replacement portables for outdoor education centres 

would come from schools and those would need to be replaced. 
 
6. Maintenance related costs associated with the portable inventory are estimated 

to exceed $60,000 annually, in time and materials. 
   

7. The average cost of a new portable is $120,000. 
 

8. A 4 year replacement program bringing 10 new portables per year would require 
an annual expenditure of $1.2 million, although the portables would be amortized 
over a 20 year period. 
 

9. KPR currently has $11,865,284 available (net from approved capital plans). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the Board approve a 4 year portable replacement program, as outlined in 

the Portable Replacement Program report dated November 9, 2016. 
 
 
Chris Arnew 
Superintendent of Business and Corporate Services 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
The committee met on November 15, 2016 and reports as follows. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present: Ben Suter (Committee Chairperson), Trustee Sarah Bobka, Trustee Mary 

Lynch-Taylor; and Bill Graham. 
 
Others: Rusty Hick; Chris Arnew, April Foster, Bruce Hamilton; Vivian Job, 

Veronica Mason, Richard Steiginga and Jane Nahrgang were also 
present.  

 
Regrets: Trustee Diane Lloyd and Mark Connors. 
 
Draft Financial Statements for Year Ended August 31, 2016 
 
Richard Steiginga and Veronica Mason, representing Collins Barrow Kawarthas 
Chartered Accountants, presented the draft Consolidated Financial Statements at 
August 31, 2016 and explained the purpose of the Independent Auditor’s Report, 
including the Statements of Financial Position, Operations and Accumulated Surplus, 
Cash Flows, and Changes in Net Debt.  In accordance with Ministry direction, the 
Financial Statements were prepared under Regulation 395/11 of the Financial 
Administration Act.   
 
The Notes to the Financial Statement include a description of the basis of accounting 
used in preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, and provide information 
related to trust funds, deferred revenue, employee future benefits, tangible capital 
assets, long-term debt, accumulated surplus/deficit, deferred capital contributions, and 
other matters.   
 
The 2015-2016 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements reflect an annual 
surplus of $3.7 million as compared to a budgeted surplus of $2.18 million for a 
favourable variance of $1.5 million.  The year-end consolidated compliance deficit of 
$3.0 million compares to a budgeted compliance deficit of $0.8 million, for an 
unfavourable variance of $2.2 million.  Chris Arnew, Superintendent of Business and 
Corporate Services explained that while there was a slight increase in enrolment and 
total revenue is up, total expenditures have also increased, largely due to a negotiated 
1% wage increase.   
 
Administration responded to questions of clarification from the committee, including 
funded programs, real estate value, school generated funds and other matters. 
 
The Financial Statements, as recommended by the committee, are included in 
Appendix A, and will be distributed at the Board Meeting of November 24, 2016. 
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External Auditors - Management Letter 
 
Richard Steiginga, External Auditor, noted that management has corrected weaknesses 
in providing monthly documentation for P-card statements.  Bruce Hamilton, Controller 
of Business and Corporate Services, advised that a policy regarding outstanding 
documentation has been implemented.   B. Graham requested that the word 
inconsequential, which is used throughout the letter, be removed.    
 
External Auditors - Audit Reporting Letter 
 
The External Auditor reviewed the Audit Reporting Letter, describing the audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Board.  The standard letter summarizes 
aspects of the audit that may be of interest, including auditor independence, evaluation 
of internal controls, related party transactions, and accounting principles and policies.  
The committee was advised that no difficulties were encountered during the audit, and 
the cooperation of staff was appreciated.  B. Graham requested that the word 
inconsequential, which is used throughout the letter, be removed.    
 

* A motion was adopted that the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 
August 31, 2016 (Appendix A), be approved with the changes as recommended to the 
Management Letter (Appendix A1) and the Audit Reporting Letter (Appendix A2). 
 
Annual Reports of the Audit Committee for the Year Ended August 31, 2016 
 
Superintendent Arnew explained that annually, the Audit Committee provides the Board 
with a detailed report of work they have done throughout the previous fiscal year.  The 
report follows a template provided by the Ministry of Education, and is to be completed no 
later than November 30 of each year.   
 
Administration explained changes to the Guideline on Audit Committee reporting.  
A summary of internal audit work performed compared to planned work provides the 
Ministry with information regarding use of the internal audit funding allocation, and is 
submitted to the Ministry by January 15 each year.  Any planned enrolment audits are  
also to be identified in annual reports, to avoid enrolment audits by the Ministry and 
internal auditors in the same year.  The full audit plan or results are not required to be 
reported. 
 
A motion was adopted that the Detailed Annual Report of the Audit Committee for the 
Year Ended August 31, 2016, be approved (Appendix B). 
 
A second motion was adopted that the Summarized Annual Report of the Audit 
Committee for the Year Ended August 31, 2016 be approved, and forwarded to the 
Ministry of Education by January 15, 2017 (Appendix C). 
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2017 Internal Audit Plan 
 
At the September 15, 2016 Audit Committee Meeting, the committee requested 
additional time for consideration of the Internal Audit Plan.  Vivian Job, Senior Regional 
Internal Auditor, and administration provided clarification regarding why items are 
identified for audit and how schools are selected for audit.  The committee members 
indicated they would like increased input into the plan in the future.    
 
A motion was put forth that the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 2017 Internal 
Audit Plan be approved (Appendix D). 
 
Update of Regional Internal Audit Consistency Measures 
 
Superintendent Arnew provided an overview of a Ministry update on Regional Internal 
Audit Consistency Measures.  The memorandum is to provide an update on measures 
being taken to promote consistency amongst Regional Internal Audit Teams (RIAT).  
 
Future Committee Meeting Dates  
 
The committee reviewed and agreed to future meeting dates as listed on the agenda.  
The next meeting date is February 6, 2017. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
1. That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board Consolidated Financial 

Statements for the Year Ended August 31, 2016, be approved with the changes 
as recommended to the Management Letter and the Audit Reporting Letter. 

 
2. That the Detailed Annual Report of the Audit Committee for the Year Ended  

August 31, 2016, be approved. 
 
3.  That the Summarized Annual Report of the Audit Committee for the Year Ended 

August 31, 2016 be approved, and forwarded to the Ministry of Education by 
January 15, 2017. 

 
4. That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 2016-2017 Internal Audit 

Plan be approved. 
 
5. That the Audit Committee Report, dated November 24, 2016, be received for 

information. 
 
 
Ben Suter 
Committee Chairperson 
 
Sarah Bobka 
Trustee Representative 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board are 
the responsibility of the Board’s management and have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Administration Act, supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum 2004:B2 and Ontario 
Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act, as described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial 
statements.  
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on 
management’s judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be 
finalized with certainty until future periods. 
 
The Board’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance 
that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative 
and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by management.  
 
The Audit Committee of the Board meets with the external auditors to review the consolidated financial 
statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to the Board’s 
approval of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Collins Barrow Kawarthas LLP, independent 
external auditors appointed by the Board. The accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report outlines their 
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Board’s consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
 
 
      
Director of Education and Secretary Superintendent of Business and 
   Corporate Services and Treasurer            
 
November 24, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF THE KAWARTHA 
  PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
Report on Financial Statement  
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Kawartha Pine Ridge District 
School Board and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at August 
31, 2016, the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net debt and cash flows 
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.    
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the 
basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, and for such internal controls 
as management determines are necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
controls.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements of the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board and 
its subsidiaries as at August 31, 2016, are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of 
accounting described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, which 
describe the basis of accounting used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements and the 
significant differences between such basis of accounting and Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
 
 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
 
Peterborough, Ontario 
November 24, 2016 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
At August 31, 2016 
      
  
   2016     2015 
   $         $         
      
 
 FINANCIAL ASSETS 
  Cash  38,385,654 58,179,611 
  Accounts receivable   
      Provincial approved capital debt support - Note 2 120,471,118  123,620,706 
      Other 17,098,139 16,690,179 
      
 
   175,954,911 198,490,496 
      
 
 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
  Bank indebtedness - Note 3 2,952,722 14,407,075 
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 22,822,945 20,292,122 
  Deferred revenue - legislated operating and capital - Note 4 14,220,836 16,235,316 
  Deferred revenue - other  1,176,135 1,113,152 
  Retirement and other employee future benefits payable - Note 6 29,372,263 34,502,374 
  Deferred capital contributions - Note 5 253,315,204 250,370,084 
  Long-term debt - Note 7 106,335,575 112,068,437 
      
 
   430,195,680 448,988,560 
      
 
 NET DEBT (254,240,769) (250,498,064) 
       
 
 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS  
  Prepaid expenses 5,217,216 5,574,033 
  Tangible capital assets - Note 8 267,639,308 259,814,952 
      
 
   272,856,524 265,388,985 
      
 
 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS - Note 9 18,615,755 14,890,921 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
        
 
     Budget   Actual   Actual 
    2016    2016      2015    
    $         $         $         
    (Unaudited) 
      
 
 REVENUES  
  Provincial grants 
     For Student needs 364,245,525 373,844,677 372,377,168 
     Other 2,587,928 4,022,448 4,065,313 
  School generated funds 9,900,000 8,293,494 8,889,261 
  Tuition and other fees - First Nations 1,930,558 2,083,758 2,025,552 
  Investment income 600,000 539,421 667,530 
  Other - school boards      276,264 348,209 616,999 
  Other  3,447,522 4,553,634 3,636,379 
  Education development charges -      4,005,125 237,265 
        
 
 TOTAL REVENUES 382,987,797 397,690,766 392,515,467 
        
 
 EXPENSES 
  Instruction 289,960,044 299,389,312 297,652,483 
  Administration 9,070,155 9,453,315 8,747,151 
  Transportation 18,740,019 18,912,317 18,721,497
  Pupil accommodation 49,663,132 54,433,179 52,830,192 
  School funded activities 9,900,000 8,581,928 9,312,200 
  Other 3,474,702 3,195,881 2,700,825 
        
 
 TOTAL EXPENSES 380,808,052 393,965,932 389,964,348 
        
 
 ANNUAL SURPLUS 2,179,745 3,724,834 2,551,119 
 
 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, beginning of year 10,236,009 14,890,921 12,339,802 
         
 
 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, end of year 12,415,754 18,615,755 14,890,921 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
      
  
   2016     2015    
   $         $         
      
 
 OPERATIONS 
   
  Annual surplus 3,724,834 2,551,119 
 
  Non-cash changes to operations 
   Amortization 17,733,134 15,414,514 
   Deferred capital contributions revenue (17,733,134) (15,414,514)  
    
  (Uses) Sources: 
   Accounts receivable - other (407,960) (3,368,493)
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,530,823 (1,370,834) 
   Deferred revenue - other 62,983 90,129 
   Deferred revenue - legislated operating 317,623   (550,556)
   Retirement and other employee future benefits payable (5,130,111) (1,085,619)
   Prepaid expenses 356,817 5,604,390 
       
 
  Net increase (decrease) in cash from operations 1,455,009 1,870,136 
       
 
 FINANCING 
  Increase (decrease) in bank indebtedness - capital purposes (11,454,353) 8,222,202 
  Long-term debt principal repayments (5,732,862) (8,836,033) 
  Decrease in Provincial approved capital debt support 3,149,588 5,957,965
  Additions to deferred capital contributions 20,678,254 27,813,471 
  (Decrease) increase in deferred revenue - legislated capital (2,332,103) 2,292,999 
        
 
  Net increase in cash from financing 4,308,524 35,450,604 
        
 
 CAPITAL 
  Acquisition of tangible capital assets (25,557,490) (27,813,471) 
        
 
  Net decrease in cash from capital transactions (25,557,490) (27,813,471) 

         
  
 NET CHANGE IN CASH  (19,793,957) 9,507,269 
 
 OPENING CASH  58,179,611 48,672,342 
       
 
 CLOSING CASH  38,385,654 58,179,611 

         
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
       
  
   2016     2015    
   $           $         
      
 
 Annual surplus 3,724,834 2,551,119 
 
 Amortization of tangible capital assets 17,733,134 15,414,514 
 
 Change in prepaid expenses 356,817 5,604,390 
 
 Acquisition of tangible capital assets (25,557,490) (27,813,471) 
       
 
 (INCREASE) IN NET DEBT (3,742,705) (4,243,448) 
  
 NET DEBT, beginning of year (250,498,064) (246,254,616) 
        
  
 NET DEBT, end of year (254,240,769) (250,498,064) 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the 
basis of accounting described below.  

 
  a) Basis of Accounting 

 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Administration Act supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum 2004:B2 and 
Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act.   

 
The Financial Administration Act requires that the consolidated financial statements be prepared in 
accordance with the accounting principles determined by the relevant Ministry of the Province of 
Ontario.  A directive was provided by the Ontario Ministry of Education within memorandum 
2004:B2 requiring school boards to adopt Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards commencing 
with their year ended August 31, 2004 and that changes may be required to the application of these 
standards as a result of regulation. 

 
In 2011, the government passed Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act.  The 
Regulation requires that contributions received or receivable for the acquisition or development of 
depreciable tangible capital assets and contributions of depreciable tangible capital assets for use in 
providing services, be recorded as deferred capital contributions and be recognized as revenue in the 
statement of operations over the periods during which the asset is used to provide service at the same 
rate that amortization is recognized in respect of the related asset.  The regulation further requires that 
if the net book value of the depreciable tangible capital asset is reduced for any reason other than 
depreciation, a proportionate reduction of the deferred capital contribution along with a proportionate 
increase in the revenue be recognized.  For Ontario school boards, these contributions include 
government transfers, externally restricted contributions and, historically, property tax revenue.  

 
The accounting policy requirements under Regulation 395/11 are significantly different from the 
requirements of Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards which requires that: 
 

 government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be 
recognized as revenue by the recipient  when approved by the transferor and the eligibility 
criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard PS3410; 

 externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the 
resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public sector 
accounting standard PS3100;  

 property taxation revenue is reported as revenue when received or receivable in accordance 
with public sector accounting standard PS3510; and 

 budget figures are presented for the consolidated statement of change in net debt. 
 

As a result, revenue recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and certain related deferred 
revenues and deferred capital contributions would be recorded differently under Canadian Public 
Sector Accounting Standards. 

 

Appendix A     Item 11.1.2     November 24, 2016 



 
 

8

KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           

 
 

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 
 
  b) Reporting Entity 

 
The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the 
reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations accountable for the 
administration of their financial affairs and resources to the Board and which are controlled by the 
Board.   

 
School generated funds, which include the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of various 
organizations that exist at the school level and which are controlled by the Board are reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

  
  Consolidated Entities  

 
 Community Training and Development Centre 
 Adam Scott Foundation  
 

Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions and balances between these organizations are 
eliminated. 

 
  c) Trust Funds 

 
Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Board amounting to $2,229,881 (2015 - 
$2,244,899) are not included in the consolidated financial statements as they are not controlled by the 
Board.  Included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is an amount owing to the Trust 
Funds of $1,892,929 (2015 - $1,907,560). 
 
d) Cash 

 
Cash is comprised of cash on hand and balance with banks.  
 

  e) Deferred Revenue 
 

Certain amounts are received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement and may only be used in 
the conduct of certain programs or in the delivery of specific services and transactions.  These 
amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred or services 
performed. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 
 
  f) Retirement and Other Employee Future Benefits 

 
The Board provides defined retirement and other future benefits to specified employee groups. These 
benefits include pension, life insurance and health care benefits, dental benefits, retirement gratuity, 
worker’s compensation and long-term disability benefits.  The Board has adopted the following 
policies with respect to accounting for these employee benefits: 

  
(i)  The costs of self-insured retirement and other employee future benefit plans are actuarially 

determined using management’s best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick days at 
retirement, insurance and health care costs trends, disability recovery rates, long-term inflation 
rates and discount rates.  In prior years, the cost of retirement gratuities that vested or 
accumulated over the periods of service provided by the employee were actuarially determined 
using management’s best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick days at retirement and 
discount rates.  As a result of the plan change, the cost of retirement gratuities are actuarially 
determined using the employee’s salary, banked sick days and years of service as at August 31, 
2012 and management’s best estimate of discount rates.  Any actuarial gains and losses arising 
from changes to the discount rate are amortized over the expected average remaining service life 
of the employee group.   

 
For self-insured retirement and other employee future benefits that vest or accumulated over the 
periods of service provided by employees, such as health care benefits for retirees, the cost is 
actuarially determined using the projected benefits method prorated on service. Under this 
method, the benefit costs are recognized over the expected average service life of the employee 
group.   
 
For those self-insured benefit obligations that arise from specific events that occur from time to 
time, such as obligations for worker’s compensation, long-term disability and life insurance and 
health care benefits for those on disability leave, the cost is recognized immediately in the 
period the events occur.  Any actuarial gains and losses that are related to these benefits are 
recognized immediately in the period they arise.  
 

(ii) The costs of multi-employer defined pension plan benefits, such as the Ontario Municipal 
Employees Retirement System pensions, are the employer’s contributions due to the plan in the 
period. 
 

(iii) The costs of insured benefits are the employer’s portion of insurance premiums owed for 
coverage of employees during the period. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 
 

g) Tangible Capital Assets 
 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost less accumulated amortization.  Historical cost 
includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development and 
betterment of the asset, as well as interest related to financing during construction.  When historical 
cost records were not available, other methods were used to estimate the costs and accumulated 
amortization. 

 
Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are 
accounted for as leased tangible capital assets.  All other leases are accounted for as operating leases 
and the related payments are charged to expenses as incurred. 
 
Tangible capital assets, except land, are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful 
lives as follows: 

   Land improvements (limited life) - 15 years 
   Buildings - 40 years 
   Portable structures - 20 years 
   Other buildings - 20 years 
   First time equipping - 10 years 
   Furniture - 10 years 
   Equipment - 5 - 15 years 
   Computer equipment - 5 years 
   Computer software - 5 years 
   Vehicles - 5 - 10 years 
   

Assets under construction and assets that relate to pre-acquisition and pre-construction costs are not 
amortized until the asset is available for productive use. 

   
Interest is capitalized on assets under construction based on amounts supported under capital financing 
arrangements up to the date the asset is put in service. 

 
Land permanently removed from service and held for resale is recorded at the lower of cost and 
estimated net realizable value.  Cost includes amounts for improvements to prepare the land for sale 
and servicing.  Buildings permanently removed from service and held for resale cease to be amortized 
and are recorded at the lower of carrying value and estimated net realizable value.  Tangible capital 
assets which meet the criteria for financial assets are reclassified as “assets held for sale” on the 
consolidated statement of financial position. 

 
Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these consolidated financial 
statements.  

 
   
  h) Investment Income 

 
Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. 

 
When required by the funding government or related Act, investment income earned on externally 
restricted funds, such as education development charges and proceeds of disposition, forms part of the 
respective deferred revenue balance. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 
 
  i) Government Transfers 

 
Government transfers, which include legislative grants, are recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements in the period in which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are 
authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made. 
If government transfers contain stipulations which give rise to a liability, they are deferred and 
recognized in revenue when the stipulations are met.  
 
Government transfers for capital are deferred as required by Regulation 395/11, recorded as deferred 
capital contributions (DCC) and recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement of operations at 
the same rate and over the same periods as the asset is amortized.  
 
 
j) Deferred Capital Contributions 
 

Contributions received or receivable for the purpose of acquiring or developing a depreciable tangible 
capital asset for use in providing services, or any contributions in the form of depreciable tangible 
assets received or receivable for use in providing services, shall be recognized as deferred capital 
contribution as defined in Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act. These 
amounts are recognized as revenue at the same rate as the related tangible capital asset is amortized.  
 
The following items fall under this category: 
 

• Government transfers received or receivable for capital purpose; 
• Other restricted contributions received or receivable for capital purpose; and 
• Property taxation revenues which were historically used to fund capital assets. 

 
 
  k) Budget Figures 

 
Budget figures, as approved by the Trustees, have been provided for comparison purposes.  This 
budget, approved by the Trustees, is developed in accordance with the Provincially mandated funding 
model for School Boards and is used to manage program spending within the guidelines of the 
funding model.  The budget figures are unaudited. 
 

  l) Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the basis of accounting 
described in note 1(a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. 
Accounts subject to significant estimate include: employee future benefits, historical cost of tangible 
capital assets, useful lives of tangible capital assets and Provincial grants and related receivables.  
Actual results could differ from these estimates.  
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 
 

m)  Non-Financial Assets 
 
Tangible capital and other non-financial assets are accounted for as assets by the Board because they 
can be used to provide services in future periods.  These assets do not normally provide resources to 
discharge the liabilities of the Board unless they are sold. 
 
n) Property Tax Revenue  
 
Under Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, the entity that determines and sets the tax levy 
records the revenue in the consolidated financial statements, which in the case of the Board, is the 
Province of Ontario. As a result, property tax revenue received from the municipalities is recorded as 
part of Provincial Legislative Grants. 

 
 
2.   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE – GOVERNMENT OF ONTARIO 
   

The Province of Ontario replaced variable capital funding with one-time debt support grant in 2009-
10. The Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board received a one-time grant that recognizes capital 
debt as of August 31, 2010 that is supported by the existing capital programs.  The Board receives this 
grant in cash over the remaining term of the existing capital debt instruments. The Board may also 
receive yearly capital grants to support capital programs which would be reflected in this account 
receivable. 

 
The Board has an account receivable from the Province of $120,471,118 (2015 - $123,620,706) as at 
August 31 with respect to capital grants.  

 
 
3.  BANK INDEBTEDNESS 
 

The Board has lines of credit available to the maximum of $90,000,000 to address operating 
requirements and/or to bridge capital expenses. 

 
Interest on the operating facility is at the bank’s prime lending rate less 0.65%.  Interest on the capital 
facility is banker’s acceptance plus 0.75%.  The line of credit is unsecured and due on demand.  The 
amount drawn on the line of credit at August 31, 2016 for capital projects, is $2,952,722 (2015 - 
$14,407,075) at an annual interest rate of 0.885%. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
4.  DEFERRED REVENUE – LEGISLATED OPERATING AND CAPITAL 

 
Revenues received and that have been set aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation or 
agreement are included in deferred revenue and reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position.  

 
Deferred revenues set aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation or agreement as at August 
31 is comprised of: 

        
 
   2016     2015    
   $         $         
          
 
    Deferred Revenue - Operating   
   Education Programs - Other (EPO)        582,268   254,868 
   Mental Health Leader -       9,777  
        
 
     582,268 264,645  
           
  
     Deferred Revenue - Capital 
   Education development charges 593,670 3,589,336 
   Retrofitting school space for child care 385,123 556,889 
   Renewable Energy - capital 137,857 137,857 
   Proceeds of disposition 2,917,949 2,917,949 
   School Renewal 9,603,969 8,755,967 
   School Condition Improvement -        12,673 

         
 
        13,638,568 15,970,671 
                  
 
     14,220,836 16,235,316 
          
 
  Education development charges (EDC’s) in the amount of $3,971,630 were used to purchase property 

in the Municipality of Clarington. The total purchase price of the property was $4,879,236. Future 
EDC’s in the amount of $907,606 will be directed towards this purchase to cover the capital shortfall. 
In addition, $33,495 was recognized as revenue to offset operating expenditures. The balance at 
August 31, 2016 represents the amount of EDC’s for Northumberland County.
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           

 
 

4.  DEFERRED REVENUE – LEGISLATED OPERATING AND CAPITAL (Continued) 
       
 
         Continuity of deferred revenue is as follows: 
       
 
     2016     2015 
     $         $         
        
 
  Balance, beginning of year - Operating  264,645          815,201 
         
   
  Add: Amounts Received: 
    Education Programs - Other (EPO)         3,548,839          2,108,021 
    Special Education  46,635,362    47,868,021 
    Mental Health Leader  119,832 120,000  
    OLE Grants (FSL)  116,280 147,743 
    Student Achievement  1,972,213 2,148,336  
         
 
      52,392,526        52,392,121 
         
 
  Less:   Amounts Transferred to Revenue: 
    Education Programs - Other (EPO)      3,221,439          2,668,354 
    Special Education  46,635,362 47,868,021 
    Mental Health Leader  129,609 110,223 
    OLE Grants (FSL)  116,280        147,743 
    Student Achievement  1,972,213 2,148,336       
         
 
      52,074,903 52,942,677 
         
 
  Balance, end of year - Operating       582,268 264,645 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           

 
 

4.  DEFERRED REVENUE – LEGISLATED OPERATING AND CAPITAL (Continued) 
       
 
     2016     2015 
     $         $         
        
 
         Balance, beginning of year - Capital    15,970,671 13,677,672 
         
   
  Add: Amounts Received: 
    Minor tangible capital assets  8,722,678 8,741,067 
    School Renewal  6,287,068 5,766,786 
    Interest on capital  5,066,762 5,490,212  
    School Condition Improvement     -        4,860,073 
    Education development charges         1,009,459 787,951 
    Temporary accommodation  275,000 143,711 
    Investment income              -       36,540 
        Retrofitting school space for child care  -       9,600 
         
 
      21,360,967     25,835,940 
         
 
  Less: Amounts Transferred to Revenue: 
    Minor tangible capital assets – operating revenue  7,374,074 7,798,225 
    School Renewal - operating revenue  2,960,555 2,700,165 
    Interest on capital  5,066,762 5,428,736 
    Education development charges earned          4,005,125 237,265 
    Temporary accommodation   275,000 143,711 
    Deferred capital contributions  4,011,554 7,234,839 
         
 
      23,693,070    23,542,941 
         
 
  Balance, end of year - Capital       13,638,568 15,970,671 
        
 
  Balance, end of year - Legislated Operating and Capital       14,220,836 16,235,316 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           

 
 

5.  DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

Deferred capital contributions include grants and contributions received that are used for the 
acquisition of tangible capital assets in accordance with regulation 395/11 that have been expended by 
year end.  The contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired.  

       
 
     2016     2015 
     $         $         
        
 
  Balance, beginning of year    250,370,084 237,971,127 
  
  Add: Additions to deferred capital contributions         20,678,254 27,813,471 
      
          Less: Revenue recognized in the period  (17,733,134) (15,414,514) 
         
 
  Balance, end of year       253,315,204 250,370,084 
        

Appendix A     Item 11.1.2     November 24, 2016 



17 
 

KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
6.  RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS PAYABLE 
        
 
     2016     2015 
     $         $         
        
 
  Liability at August 31,  
   Retirement benefits: 
    Retirement gratuities 25,650,840 30,996,949 
    Retirement health care benefits 239,956 330,232 
   Other employee future benefits: 
    Workplace Safety and Insurance Board 3,348,006 3,030,628 
    Compensated Absences 133,461 144,565 
        
 
     29,372,263 34,502,374 
       
 
  Retirement gratuities are comprised of the following: 
        
 
     2016     2015 
     $         $         
        
 
  Accrued benefit obligation 23,166,987 27,196,156 
  Unamortized actuarial gain 2,483,853 3,800,793  
        
 
     25,650,840 30,996,949 
       
 
       
 
  Retirement and Other Employee 
  Future Benefit Expenses 2016 2015 
       
 
      Other Total Total 
      Employee Employee Employee 
      Retirement Future Future Future 
     Benefits Benefits Benefits Benefits 
     $         $         $         $         
          
 
  Current year benefit cost -       1,118,135 1,118,135 1,829,771 
  Interest on accrued benefit obligation 614,676 -       614,676 917,372 
  Amortized actuarial (gain) loss (714,348) -       (714,348) 45,723 
  Net gain on early payout (64,314) -       (64,314) -       
         
    
  Employee Future Benefits Expenses1 (163,986) 1,118,135 954,149 2,792,866 
           
 
  1 Excluding pension contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System, a  
   multi-employer pension plan, described below. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
6.  RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS PAYABLE - (Continued) 

 
  Actuarial Assumptions 

 
The accrued benefit obligations for employee future benefit plans as at August 31, 2016 are based on 
the most recent actuarial valuations completed for accounting purposes as at August 31, 2016. These 
valuations take into account the plan changes outlined above and the economic assumptions used in 
these valuations are the Board’s best estimates of expected rates of: 

          
 
       2016 2015 
          %    % 
          
 
  Wage and salary escalation  0.00 0.00 
  Insurance and health care cost escalation 4.5 - 7.7  4.5 - 7.9  

 Discount on accrued benefit obligation 2.00 – 2.35  2.35 - 3.00 
           

 
 (i)  Ontario Teacher’s Pension Plan 

 
Teachers and related employee groups are eligible to be members of the Ontario Teacher’s Pension Plan. 
Employer contributions for these employees are provided directly by the Province of Ontario.  The 
pension costs and obligations related to this plan are a direct responsibility of the Province. Accordingly, 
no costs or liabilities related to this plan are included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements. 

 
  (ii)  Retirement Gratuities 

 
The Board provides retirement gratuities to certain groups of employees hired prior to specified dates.  
The Board provides these benefits through an unfunded defined benefit plan. The benefit costs and 
liabilities related to this plan are included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements. As a result of 
a plan change, the amount of the gratuities payable to eligible employees at retirement is based on their 
salary, accumulated sick days, and years of service at August 31, 2012.  
 

1. Voluntary Retirement Gratuity Early Payout Provision 
  
During 2016, OSSTF, ETFO and CUPE ratified agreements at the local and central level, which 
included a voluntary retirement gratuity early payout provision. The provision provided OSSTF, 
ETFO and CUPE members the option of receiving a discounted frozen retirement gratuity benefit 
payment by August 31, 2016 (or the first pay period in September 2016 for CUPE). 
 
This provision was also made available to all non-unionized school Board employees, including 
principals and vice-principals. These payments were paid by August 31, 2016. 
 
Some employees took the early payouts, which were discounted from the current financial 
statement carrying values. As a result, the reduction in the liability for those members who took 
the voluntary retirement gratuity early payout option was accompanied by actuarial gains in the 
Board’s 2016 year consolidated financial statements. This resulted in the Board’s retirement and 
other employee benefits payable decreasing by $1,777,273. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
6.  RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS PAYABLE - (Continued) 
 

(iii) Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System 
 
All non-teaching employees of the Board are eligible to be members of the Ontario Municipal Employees 
Retirement System (OMERS), a multi-employer pension plan. The plan provides defined pension 
benefits to employees based on their length of service and rates of pay. The Board contributions equal the 
employee contributions to the plan. During the year ended August 31, 2016, the Board contributed 
$4,999,862 (2015 - $4,907,230) to the plan. As this is a multi-employer pension plan, these contributions 
are the Board’s pension benefit expenses. No pension liability for this type of plan is included in the 
Board’s consolidated financial statements. 

 
(iv) Retirement Life Insurance and Health Care Benefits 
 

The Board continues to provide life insurance, dental and health care benefits to certain employee groups 
after retirement until the members reach 65 years of age. The premiums are based on the Board 
experience and retirees’ premiums may be subsidized by the Board. The benefit costs and liabilities 
related to the plan are provided through an unfunded defined benefit plan and are included in the Board’s 
consolidated financial statements.   

 
(v)   Compensated Absences  
 
A maximum of eleven unused sick leave days from the current year may be carried forward into the 
following year only, to be used to top-up salary for illnesses paid through the short-term leave and 
disability plan in that year.  The benefit costs reduced expenses in the consolidated financial statements 
by $11,104 (2015 – expenses were increased by $30,723). 
 

The accrued benefit obligation for the sick leave top-up is based on an actuarial valuation for accounting 
purposes as of August 31, 2013.  This actuarial valuation is based on assumptions about future events. 

 
(vi) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Obligations 
 
The Board is a Schedule 2 employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act and, as such, 
assumes responsibility for the payment of all claims to its injured workers under the Act. The Board does 
not fund these obligations in advance of payments made under the Act. The benefit costs and liabilities 
related to this plan are included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements.  Plan changes made in 
2012 require school boards to provide salary top-up to a maximum of 4 1/2 years for employees 
receiving payments from the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board, where previously negotiated 
collective agreement included no such provision.  The payments to the Workplace Safety and Insurance 
Board (WSIB) during the year ended August 31, 2016 amounted to $667,297 (2015 - $714,080). 

 
   (vii) Other Benefits 

 
Certain Board employees are permitted to accumulate vacation time and overtime.  Unused vacation 
time and overtime are recorded as liabilities at the end of the year at current salary rates.  

  
As detailed in Note 9 - Accumulated Surplus, the Board has appropriated funds for certain of these 
employee future benefit obligations.  The balance of the appropriated funds at August 31 is as follows: 
retirement gratuity $10,671,642 (2015 - $10,671,642) and WSIB $1,341,580 (2015 - $1,341,580). 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
6.  RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS PAYABLE - (Continued) 
 
  Benefit Plan Future Changes 
 

Currently, the Board provides health, dental and life insurance benefits for certain employees and 
retired individuals from the Board and has assumed liability for payment of benefits under these plans. 
As part of ratified labour collective agreements for unionized employees that bargain centrally and 
ratified central discussions with the principals and vice-principals associations, Employee Life and 
Health Trusts (ELHTs) will be established in 2016-17 for the following employee groups: ETFO, 
OSSTF, CUPE, non-unionized employees (including principals and vice-principals). The ELHTs will 
provide health, life, and dental benefits to teachers (excluding daily occasional teachers), education 
workers (excluding casual and temporary staff), other Board staff and retired individuals up to a 
Board’s participation date into the ELHT. These benefits will be provided through a joint governance 
structure between the bargaining/employee groups, Board trustees associations and the Government of 
Ontario. Starting November 1, 2016, the Board will no longer be responsible to provide benefits to the 
ETFO and OSSTF groups. The date of transition for the other employee groups is expected to take 
place before August 31, 2017. The Board will transfer to the ELHTs an amount per full-time 
equivalency based on the 2014-15 actual benefit costs + 8.16% representing inflationary increases for 
2015-16 and 2016-17. In addition, the Ministry of Education will provide an additional $300 per FTE 
for active employees to the Board. These amounts will then be transferred to the ELHTs for the 
provision of employee and retiree benefits.  

Appendix A     Item 11.1.2     November 24, 2016 



21 
 

KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

Long-term debt reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is comprised of the 
following: 

       
 
     2016    2015 
     $         $         
        
 
  John M. James PS, borrowed $5,500,000 
  Bank loan repayable in blended monthly instalments of  
  $44,743, interest rate of 4.7%, due November 3, 2020 2,064,785 2,493,664 
 
  Harold Longworth PS, Roger Neilson PS,  
  Clarington Central SS, borrowed $28,300,000 
  Bank loan repayable in blended monthly instalments of  
  $221,654, interest rate of 5.48%, due May 31, 2019 8,997,080 11,100,541 
 
  GPL Stage 1, borrowed $20,246,679 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $676,070, interest rate of 4.56%,  
  due November 17, 2031 14,910,601 15,560,508 
 
  GPL Stage 2, borrowed $3,887,889 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $136,288, interest rate of 4.90%,  
  due March 3, 2033 3,095,734 3,212,317 
 
  Dr. G.J. MacGillivray PS, borrowed $5,445,660 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $221,157, interest rate of 5.054%,  
  due November 15, 2028 4,063,078 4,291,354 
 
  GPL Stage 2, Phase 2, borrowed $5,141,116      
          Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $183,043, interest rate of 5.062%,  
  due March 13, 2034 4,265,087 4,409,758 
 
  GPL Stage 2, Phase 3, borrowed $2,548,311 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $92,109, interest rate of 5.232%,  
  due April 14, 2035 2,194,969 2,261,716 
 
  GPL Stage 3, borrowed $6,026,605 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $217,833, interest rate of 5.232%,  
  due April 14, 2035 5,190,972 5,348,824
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT – (Continued) 
       
 
     2016    2015 
     $         $        
         
   
  Waverley PS, borrowed $1,537,795 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $55,584, interest rate of 5.232%,  
  due April 14, 2035 1,324,568 1,364,847 
 
  Ridpath Junior PS, borrowed $1,364,981 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $49,337, interest rate of 5.232%,  
  due April 14, 2035 1,175,716 1,211,469  
 
  GPL Stage 3, borrowed $8,475,837 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $294,979, interest rate of 4.833%,  
  due March 11, 2036 7,469,595 7,690,509 
 
  Apsley PS, Waverley PS, Ganaraska Trail PS,  
  borrowed $4,297,280 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $149,555, interest rate of 4.833%,  
  due March 11, 2036 3,787,112 3,899,116 
 
  Apsley PS, borrowed $2,966,172 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $103,230, interest rate of 4.833%,  
  due March 11, 2036 2,614,032 2,691,342 
 
  Apsley PS, Ganaraska Trail PS, borrowed $5,931,661 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $206,436, interest rate of 4.833%,  
  due March 11, 2036 5,227,461 5,382,063 
 
  GPL Stage 3, borrowed $3,698,293 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $112,892, interest rate of 3.564%,  
  due March 9, 2037 3,298,082 3,403,497 
 
  GPL Stage 4, borrowed $4,599,242 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $140,394, interest rate of 3.564%,  
  due March 9, 2037 4,101,534 4,232,630 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
  
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued) 
       
 
     2016    2015 
     $         $         
        
 
  Apsley PS, Ganaraska Trail PS, borrowed $1,046,995 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $31,960, interest rate of 3.564%,  
  due March 9, 2037 933,694 963,538 
 
  Charles Bowman PS, borrowed $7,326,679 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $223,651, interest rate of 3.564%,  
  due March 9, 2037 6,533,822 6,742,660 
 
  Northumberland Hills PS, borrowed $1,031,559 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $31,489, interest rate of 3.564%,  
  due March 9, 2037 919,929 949,332 
 
  Northumberland Hills PS, borrowed $6,363,646 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $194,254, interest rate of 3.564%,  
  due March 9, 2037 5,675,003 5,856,391 
 
  GPL Stage 4, borrowed $1,865,946 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $58,359, interest rate of 3.799%,  
  due March 19, 2038 1,721,758 1,771,640 
 
  Brighton PS, borrowed $1,029,939 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $32,212, interest rate of 3.799%,  
  due March 19, 2038 950,352 977,886 
   
  Brighton PS, Charles Bowman PS, borrowed $6,006,470 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $187,857, interest rate of 3.799%,  
  due March 19, 2038 5,542,330 5,702,901 
 
  Brighton PS, borrowed $4,308 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $135, interest rate of 3.799%,  
  due March 19, 2038 3,975 4,090 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
  
 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued) 
       
 
     2016    2015 
     $         $         
        
 
  Brighton PS, borrowed $3,974 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $124, interest rate of 3.799%,  
  due March 19, 2038 3,667 3,773 
 
  Duke of Cambridge PS, borrowed $10,802,956 
  Ontario Financing Authority loan repayable in blended 
  semi-annual instalments of $345,371, interest rate of 4.003%,  
  due March 11, 2039 10,270,639 10,542,071 
        
 
     106,335,575  112,068,437 
          

 
Future debt payments are as follows: 

       
 
         Principal  Interest Total 
     $           $           $         
        
 
   2017 6,015,898 4,669,500 10,685,398 
   2018 6,311,656 4,373,743 10,685,399 
   2019 8,570,868 4,029,965 12,600,833 
   2020 4,330,054 3,694,683 8,024,737 
   2021 4,118,011 3,504,884 7,622,895 
                 
        
     29,346,487 20,272,775 49,619,262 
   2022 - 2039 76,989,088 26,341,481 103,330,569    
        
 
     106,335,575 46,614,256 152,949,831 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
                  
 
8. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS  
     
 

  ------------------------------------Cost------------------------------------- ---------------Accumulated Amortization------------------  
    Additions    Additions  Net Book Net Book 
    and     and   Value Value 
   Opening        Transfers   Disposals Closing  Opening Transfers Disposals Closing  2016  2015 
   $             $             $             $              $      $      $      $      $  $         
             
  
  Land 8,853,481 4,879,236  -             13,732,717  -       -       -       -       13,732,717 8,853,481 
 
  Land improvements 3,820,354 -        -       3,820,354 530,209 245,491 -       775,700 3,044,654 3,290,145 
 
  Buildings 362,980,101 25,221,232    -             388,201,333 131,810,588 14,413,931 -      146,224,519 241,976,814 231,169,513 
 
  Portable structures 5,018,795       -        -       5,018,795 4,836,565 21,440 -       4,858,005 160,790 182,230 
 
  Equipment  8,644,049 487,067 -       9,131,116 8,087,423 250,524 -       8,337,947 793,169 556,626 
   
  Computer hardware  11,306,990 2,412,000 -       13,718,990 6,784,056 2,382,578 -       9,166,634 4,552,356 4,522,934 
 
  First time equipping 2,941,098 104,563 -       3,045,661 813,013 299,338 -       1,112,351 1,933,310 2,128,085 
 
  Vehicles < 1 ton 566,146 131,244 -       697,390 225,229 119,832 -       345,061 352,329 340,917 
 
  Construction in progress 8,771,021 (7,677,852) -       1,093,169 -       -       -       -         1,093,169 8,771,021 
              
 
    412,902,035 25,557,490 -             438,459,525 153,087,083 17,733,134 -       170,820,217 267,639,308 259,814,952 
          
 
  a)  During the year there were no write-down of assets (2015 - $Nil) and no interest capitalized (2015 - $61,476). 
 
  b)  Construction in progress assets have not been amortized.  Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put into service. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
9. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 
 
  Accumulated surplus/(deficit) consists of the following: 
           
 
   2016     2015    
   $         $         
           
 
  Accumulated Surplus 
   Operating -       -       
 
  Internally Appropriated 
   Retirement gratuities 10,671,642 10,671,642 
   WSIB 1,341,580 1,341,580 
   Information and communications infrastructure 4,526,503 5,326,503 
   General operations/strategic initiatives 3,885,401 5,000,527 
   School activities 1,553,821 1,591,956 
   Community Training and Development 
   Centre (CTDC) accumulated surplus 226,517 214,336 
   Field improvements 474,516 309,516 
   Special education 1,047,711 1,297,711 
   Facilities improvement 5,324,400 6,280,237 
       Non-instructional facilities improvement                 -       33,825 
       
 
   29,052,091 32,067,833  
      
 
  Externally Appropriated 
   Retirement gratuities (23,885,607) (26,871,308) 
   Retirement health care benefits (430,074) (501,753) 
   Workplace Safety and Insurance Board (2,346,459) (2,346,459) 
   School generated funds 3,399,699 3,688,133 
   Revenues recognized for land 12,826,105 8,854,475 
       
 
    (10,436,336) (17,176,912) 
       
 
    18,615,755 14,890,921 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
 
10. EXPENSES BY OBJECT 
   

The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and 
Accumulated Surplus: 

       
 
     Budget Actual Actual 
     2016 2016 2015 
     $     $         $         
      (Unaudited) 
        
 
   Salary and wages  257,463,434 269,421,850 265,718,730 
     Employee benefits  38,364,578 37,307,261 39,948,633 
    Staff development  1,082,156 744,459 958,676 
     Supplies and services  28,484,576 29,398,015 28,346,659 
     Interest  5,012,539 5,066,761 5,725,122 
   Rentals  103,078 64,102 91,211 
   Fees and contract services  23,570,427 23,614,495 23,210,320 
   Other  1,445,757 2,033,927 1,238,283 
   Amortization  15,381,507 17,733,134 15,414,514 
   School funded activities  9,900,000 8,581,928 9,312,200 
         
    
      380,808,052 393,965,932 389,964,348 
          
 
 
11. ONTARIO SCHOOL BOARD INSURANCE EXCHANGE (OSBIE) 

 
The School Board is a member of the Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange (OSBIE), a 
reciprocal insurance company licensed under the Insurance Act.  OSBIE insures general public 
liability, property damage and certain other risks.  Liability insurance is available to a maximum of 
$24,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
The ultimate premiums over a five year period are based on the reciprocals and the Board’s actual 
claims experience.  Periodically, the Board, may receive a refund or be asked to pay an additional 
premium based on its pro rata share of claims experience.  The current five year term expires 
December 31, 2016. 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For The Year Ended August 31, 2016 
           
 
12. DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE RELATED CHARGES 
 

Included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus is the following: 
         
 
       2016      2015      
      $         $         
                                                                                                                                                      
 
  Interest payments on long-term liabilities 4,952,540 5,580,560  
         
 
 
13. REPAYMENT OF 55 SCHOOL BOARD TRUST FUNDING 
 

On June 1, 2003, the Board received $15,044,574 from the 55 School Board Trust for its capital debt 
eligible for provincial funding support pursuant to a 30 year agreement it entered into with the Trust.  
The 55 School Board Trust was created to refinance the outstanding not permanently financed (NPF) 
debt of participating Boards who are beneficiaries of the Trust.  Under the terms of the agreement, the 
55 School Board Trust repaid the Board’s debt in consideration for the assignment by the Board to the 
Trust of future Provincial grants payable to the Board in respect of the NPF debt.  This long term debt 
has not been reported by the Board in these consolidated financial statements. 

 
The flow through in respect of the above agreement for the year ended August 31, 2016 in the amount 
of $1,120,831 (2015 - $1,120,831) has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
 

14.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

The Board, in the course of its operations, has been named in several lawsuits the outcomes of which 
are indeterminable at this time.  No amounts in connection with these items have been reflected in 
these financial statements. 

 
 

15.  COMMITMENTS 
 
  As part of the Board’s capital plan, schools are reconstructed over a number of years. As part of this 

process the Board has committed to:  
         
 
      Approved Remaining 
      Amount      Commitment 
      $      $       
                                                                                                                                                      
 
  Millbrook South Cavan Public School – Addition 3,501,763 2,408,595 
  Thomas A. Stewart Secondary School – Retrofit 2,732,958 605,869 
  Lakefield Intermediate – Retrofit 3,163,981 3,163,981 
  Ganaraska Trail – Addition 2,061,064 2,050,490 
          
   
  The amounts presented include the non-refundable portion of any commodity taxes. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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16.  TRANSPORTATION CONSORTIUM 
 

On March 30, 2007, the Board entered into an agreement with Peterborough Victoria 
Northumberland and Clarington Catholic District School Board and Conseil Scolaire de District 
Catholique Centre-Sud in order to provide common administration of student transportation in its 
service region.  This agreement was executed in an effort to increase delivery efficiency and cost 
effectiveness of student transportation for each of the Boards.  Under the agreement, decisions related 
to the financial and operating activities of Student Transportation Services of Central Ontario 
(STSCO) are shared.  No partner is in a position to exercise unilateral control. 

 
The Board’s consolidated financial statements reflect its pro-rata share of revenues and expenses.  
Expenses are shared on the basis of student ridership for transportation costs and a pro-rata sharing of 
administrative costs.   
 

  The following provides condensed financial information: 
            
 

2016   2015 
            
 
      Total Board Share Total Board Share 
        $ $ $ $ 
             
  
   Net transportation expenses 27,994,940 18,912,317 27,786,223 18,721,497 
            
 
 
17. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
  

Certain 2015 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in 
2016. The changes did not result in any change to the annual surplus amount. 
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Collins Barrow Kawarthas LLP 
272 Charlotte Street 
Peterborough, Ontario 
K9J 2V4 

T. 705.742.3418 
F. 705.742.9775 

November 15, 2016 www.collinsbarrowkawarthas.com  

Collins Barrow 
Chartered Professional Accountants 

Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 
1994 Fisher Drive 
P.O Box 719 
Peterborough, Ontario 
K9J 7A1 

Attention: Chris Amew 

Dear Sir: 

Re: Audit of August 31, 2016 Financial Statements 

The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free of 
material misstatement; our audit was not designed for the purpose of identifying matters to communicate. 
Accordingly, our audit would not usually identify all such matters that may be of interest to management 
and it is inappropriate to conclude that no such matters exist 

During the course of our audit of Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board ("the school board") for the 
year ended August 31, 2016 we did not identify any of the following matters: 

• misstatements, other than trivial errors; 
• fraud; 
• misstatements that may cause future financial statements to be materially misstated; 
• illegal or possibly illegal acts; or 
• significant weaknesses in internal control. 

We have identified the following other matters that we wish to bring to the attention of management: 

Purchasing cards 

Observation and implication 

We understand that management implemented a policy during the summer to suspend the purchasing 
card (P-Card) of any cardholder whose documentation for charges is 3 months overdue. There was no 
supporting documentation on file for two of the P-Card transactions tested during our interim audit 
procedures. At the time of our year-end fieldwork, the documentation for one of these cards had been 
received. The other had not, but this card has been suspended (in accordance with the recent policy) 
until the cardholder has submitted all outstanding documentation. 

It is important that documentation supporting P-Card charges be reviewed, approved and retained in 
order to protect KPRDSB from unauthorized charges. Documentation retention is also necessary to 
support HST rebates and to preserve an audit trail of the expenditures. 

SR MOSPORCISRI 	• 

This office is independently owned and operated by Colhns Barrow Kawarthas LLP 
	

BAKER TILLY 
The Collins Barrow trademarks are used under License. 	 INTERNATIONAL 
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Recommendation 

We recommend that KPRDSB continue to enforce the policy of suspending P-Cards when 
documentation is overdue in order to improve employee compliance with your policies concerning 
documentation and approvals. 

It is important to note that management is responsible for ensuring that the school board has adequate 
internal controls and uses sound business practices as part of its overall responsibility for the ongoing 
activities. The school board's policies and procedures are present to: 

• safeguard its assets, and 

• provide reasonable assurance that errors, irregularities or illegal acts are promptly identified. 

Further, these policies and procedures should be properly monitored to ensure that all staff comply with 
the guidelines provided. 

This letter is intended solely for the use of the school board's board of directors and management, and 
should not be used for any other purpose, including distribution to third parties. 

In closing, we appreciate the co-operation from you and your staff during our audit visit. If you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. It is a pleasure for us to be of service and we look forward 
to many more years of association with you. 

Yours very truly, 

Coilimi-13artvw Kau/art-hap LLF' 

Richard Steiginga, CPA, CA 

Collins Barrow 
tal 
	

Accounlanft: 
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Chartered Professional Accountants 

November 151  2016 

Members of the Audit Committee 
Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 
1994 Fisher Drive 
P.O Box 719 
Peterborough, Ontario 
K9J 7A1 

Collins Barrow Kawarthas LLP 
272 Charlotte Street 
Peterborough,. Ontario 
K9J 2V4 

T. 705.742,3418 
F. 705.742.9775 

www.collinsbarrowkawarthas.com  

Collins Barrow  

Re: Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 

Dear Members of the Audit Committee: 

We have been engaged to express an audit opinion on the consolidated financial Statements of the 
Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board ("the School Board") -for the year ended August 311  2016. We 
have substantially completed our audit and are pleased to report on the following items. 

The purpose of this report is to summarize certain aspects of the audit that we believe to be of Interest to 
the Audit Committee. This report should be read in conjunction with the draft consolidated financial 
statements and our report thereon, as well as our Audit Planning letter previously fon/larded to you. 

Auditor independence 

As communicated previously In a separate letter to the Audit Committee, we are not aware of any 
relationship between the School Board and us that, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our Independence. 

Accordingly, we hereby re-confirm that our engagement team, our Firm and the other Collins Barrow 
offices are independent with respect to the School Board within the meaning of the Rules of Professional 
Conduct Rule 204 of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario (registered name of The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario). 

Independent Auditors' Report 

We expect that our Independent Auditors' Report will include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph. The 
proposed wording is as follows: 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, which 
describe the basis of accounting used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements and 
the significant differences between such basis of accounting and Canadian public sector accounting 
standards. 

Evaluation of Internal Controls 

Audits include a review and evaluation of the system of internal controls to assist in determining the level 
of reliance that may or should be placed on the system in assessing the nature and extent of audit 
procedures to be undertaken. 

othceb Ideptiuteallly °roux' ;if it! Cpcfflt,CIJy CatLim Olrrow Kawaillus I LA 
Tlw 	Palmy iraclenkiikt; fife Med ttlIfiet I Fccrm 
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There are no significant internal control matters that we wish to bring to your attention. - 

Illegal Acts, Fraud, Intentional Misstatements and Errors 

Our auditing procedures, including tests of your accounting records, were limited to those considered 
necessary in the circumstances and will not necessarily disclose all illegal acts should any exist Under 
CAS, we consider the School Board's control environment, governance structure, circumstances 
encountered during the audit and the potential likelihood of fraud and illegal acts occurring. 

These procedures are not designed to test for fraudulent or illegal acts, nor will they necessarily detect 
such acts or recognize them as such, even if the effect on the consolidated financial statements is 
material. However, should we become aware that an Illegal or possibly illegal act or act of fraud may have 
occurred, we will communicate directly to the Audit Committee. 

It is management's responsibility to detect and prevent illegal action. If such acts are discovered or the 
Audit Committee members become aware of circumstances under which the School Board may have 
been involved in fraudulent, illegal or regulatory non-compliance situations, such circumstances must- be 
disclosed to us. 

Testing during our audit did not reveal any illegal, improper or questionable payments or acts, nor any acts 
committed with the intent to deceive, invotving either misappropriation of assets or misrepresentation of 
assets or misrepresentation of financial information. 

Related Party Transactions 

During our audit, we conduct various tests and procedures to identify transactions considered to involve 
related parties. Related parties exist when one party has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly, 
control, joint control or significant influence over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are 
subject to common control, joint control or common significant influence. Related parties also include 
management, directors and their immediate family members and companies with which these individual 
have an economic interest. 

All related party transactions that were identified during the audit have been represented by management 
to have been disclosed in the notes to financial statements, recorded in accordance with Canadian Public 
Sector Accounting Standards, and have been reviewed with you. 

Management has advised that no other related party transactions have occurred that have not been 
disclosed to us. The Audit Committee is required to advise us If it is aware of or suspects any other related 
party transactions have occurred, which have not been disclosed in the financial statements, 

Significant Accounting Principles and Policies 

Management is responsible for the appropriate selection and application of accounting policies. Our role is 
to review the appropriateness and application as part of our audit. The significant accounting principles 
and policies are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

The Audit Committee has a responsibility to review the accounting policies adopted by the School Board, 
and where alternative policies are available, make determinations as to the most appropriate policies to 
be adopted in the circumstances, if members of the Audit Committee believe that the adoption or change 
in accounting policy may produce an inappropriate or misleading result in financial reporting or disclosure, 
this concern must be discussed with management and us. 

There were no new accounting policies adopted or changes to the application of accounting policies of the 
School Board during the year. 

2 "Ve  Collins Barrow 
Outflow' Proloss‘onal Accountants 
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Accounting Estimates 

Management is responsible for the accounting estimates included in the consolidated financial 
statements. Estimates and the related judgements and assumptions are based on management's 
knowledge of the business and past experience about current and future events; 	, 

• 
Our responsibility as auditors is to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide reasonable assurance 
that management's accounting estimates are reasonable within the context of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. An audit includes performing appropriate procedures to verify the: 

• Calculation of accounting estimates; 
• Analyzing of key factors such as underlying management assumptions; 
• Materiality of estimates individually and in the aggregate in relation to the financial statements as a 

whole; 
• Estimate's sensitivity to variation and deviation from historical patterns; 
• Estimate's consistency with the entity's business plans; and 
• Other audit evidence. 

Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because they involve a significant degree of 
Judgement and may have a range of possible outcomes-The most sensitive accounting estimates In order 
of significance are as follows: 

• Tangible capital asset useful lives and original capital costs; 
• Employee future benefits; and 
• Provincial grants and related receivables, 

Significant Matters Discussed With Management 

There were no significant matters arising from the audit discussed with management. 

Written Representations Requested From Management 

As part of our audit, we request that management prepare a letter to us to re-affirm various 
representations that they have provided to us and we have relied upon, A copy of this letter is attached for 
your convenience, 

Significant Misstatements 

In the course of our audit, we have not found any material misstatements or unadjusted items that, in 
aggregate, exceed materiality thresholds established for the audit, nor have we found significant 
misstatements that would likely cause future financial statements to be materially misstated. 

Uncorrected Misstatements 

In the course of our audit, we have not identified any uncorrected financial statement misstatements. 

Significant Unusual Transactions 

We are not aware of any significant transactions entered into by the School Board that you should be 
informed about 

Disagreements with Management 

We are required to communicate any disagreements with management, whether or not resolved, about 
matters that are individually or in aggregate significant to the School Board's financial statements or 
auditors' report. Disagreements may arise over: 

3 
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• Selection or application of accounting principles; 
• Assumptions and related judgements for accounting estimates; 
• Financial statement disclosures; 
• Scope of the audit: or 
• Wording of the auditors' report. 

In the course of our audit, we did not have any significant disagreements with management, nor were we 
under any significant time pressures or poor working conditions. We are not aware of any cause, for 
concern as to management's attitude, competence or credibility with respect to matters affecting the 
financial statements. 

Difficulties Encountered During the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties during our audit that should be brought to the attention of the 
Audit Committee. 

Management Letter 

We have submitted to management a letter on Internal controls and any other matters that we feel should 
be brought to the attention of management. 

Conclusion 

We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from the School 
Board's management. 

Should any member of the Audit Committee wish to discuss or review any matter addressed in this letter 
or any other matters related to financial reporting, please do not hesitate to contact us at any time. 

To ensure there is a clear understanding and record of the matters discussed, we ask that members of 
the Audit Committee sign their acknowledgement in the spaces provided below. 

Yours very truly, 

Coi14n 4-ifarrow Xawartha tLP  
per: Richard Steiginga, CPA, CA 

Acknowledgement of the Audit Committee: 

We have read and reviewed the above disclosures and understand and agree with the comments therein: 

Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 

>4,...,1 	C., "64 

   

Name 	 Position 

Name 	 Position 

4 

Appendix A2     * Revised Item 11.1.2     November 24, 2016 



Collins Barrow 
Chariered Prolossionnl Accounrantr, 

Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements 

Description of 

Misstatement 
. 	  

Proposed Adjustments Dr (Cr) 

Statement of income Balance Sheet 

Identified 
_ Misstatements 

Likely 
Aggregate 

Misstatements Assets Liabilities 
Opening 
Equity 

a) Totals - - - - 

b) Misstatements 	corrected 	by 
management 

- - - - 

c) Likely aggregate misstatements net of 
corrections (a - b) 

- - - - 

d) Effect 	of unadjusted 	Misstatements 
from previous year's errors 

. . _ _ 

e) Aggregate likely misstatements (c + d) -- - - 

U 	Final overall materiality 6,800,000 6,8001000 6,800,000 6,800,000 

g) Amount remaining for further possible 
misstatement (f - e) 

6,800,000 6,800,000 6,8001000 6,800,000 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

Detailed Annual Report of the Audit Committee 
 

This report summarizes the Audit Committee’s actions for the year ending  
August 31, 2016. 

 
1. Audit Committee Members 
 

The following Audit Committee members served for the period  
September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016: 

 
Diane Lloyd, Trustee, (Committee Chairperson to February 22, 2016) 
Bill Graham, External member* 
Ben Suter, External member*, (Committee Chairperson elected  
February 22, 2016) 
Sarah Bobka, Trustee representative 
Mary Lynch-Taylor, Trustee representative 
 

*In accordance with Ontario Regulation # 361/10, the external Committee 
members were re-appointed for a three-year term, effective January 1, 
2014. 

 
In addition, regular attendees at the committee meetings were: 
 
 Richard Steiginga, External Auditor 
 Veronica Mason, External Auditor 

Mark Connors, Regional Internal Audit Manager 
 Vivian Job, Senior Regional Internal Auditor 

Chris Arnew, Superintendent, Business and Corporate Services 
Bruce Hamilton, Controller, Business and Corporate Services 
April Foster, Manager, Financial Systems and Reporting 
Jane Nahrgang, Administrative Assistant  

 
2. Assessment 
 
 At the beginning of the year and, in accordance with recommended good 

practice, various administrative tasks were completed.  These included: 
 

 Establishing a meeting schedule and agendas for the year 
 Completion of annual Audit Committee Self-assessment for prior year 
 Approved Annual Audit Committee Report for Year Ending August 2015, and 

submitted summarized report to Ministry of Education 
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3. Meetings 
 

It was planned to hold four meetings throughout the year.  The meeting 
scheduled for June 13, 2016, was cancelled.  Members were in attendance at 
each meeting as follows: 

 
Member’s Name September 21, 

2015 
November 12, 

2015 
February 22, 

2016 

Diane Lloyd X X X 
Bill Graham X X X 
Ben Suter 
Sarah Bobka 
Mary Lynch-Taylor 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

 
4. Governance 
 

The Audit Committee operated throughout the fiscal year ending  
August 31, 2016.  All committee members satisfied the eligibility requirements  
of Ontario Regulation 361/10. 
 

5. External Auditors 
 

The relationship with the external auditors has been satisfactory, and no private 
meetings were requested by the auditors during the year.  The external auditors, 
Collins Barrow Kawarthas LLP, presented the scope and extent of their work to 
the committee for approval at the meeting held September 21, 2015.   
The external auditors confirmed their independence in the letter dated  
September 21, 2015.  The Audit Committee recommended approval of the 
annual Audited Financial Statements on November 12, 2015.  
 

6. Internal Auditors 
 
 The relationship with the internal auditors has been satisfactory, and no private 

meetings were requested by the auditors during the year.  The committee 
reviewed the results of updated risk assessments, and the annual audit plan for 
the 2015-2016 fiscal year. 
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The internal auditors performed the following work since the last annual report of 
the committee: 
 
Approved Audits on Annual Audit Plan 

 
 School Generated Funds and P-Cards 
 IT General Controls and Governance 
 Enrolment at Continuing Education Facilities 
 Facility Operations Process 

 
Other Internal Audit Work 

 
 Audit Plan Updates 
 Reviewed and provided input and shared best practices for policies and 

procedures 
 Shared information regarding regional internal audit initiatives 
 Met with management, as required 
 Responded to Audit Committee and management requests 

 
Summary of audits and findings made by the internal auditor: 
 
Audit Findings 

 
School Generated Funds 
and Petty Cash 

 
 Improvements in fundraising plan, collections, 

frequency of deposits and accounting transfers 
since the previous year 

 P-Cards - improved efficiency 
 School Cash On-line – improved control 

 
IT General Controls and 
Governance 

 
 Enhance IT Policies and Procedures 
 Enhance Password Settings 

 
 
Enrolment at Continuing 
Education Facilities 
 

 
 Prolonged Absences – Removal from the 

register 
 Pupil External Transfers and Retirements - 

Removal from the register 
 Pupil External Transfers and Retirements – 

Lack of documentation 
 

Facility Operations 
Process 
 

 
 Commencing July 2016 

 

  

 The Audit Committee endorsed reports, including management’s action plans, 
and submitted any recommendations to the Board.  
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The Audit Committee received reports from internal audit that assessed the 
adequacy of management’s response to recommendations made in previous 
audits.  This enabled the committee to engage management in a discussion of 
the response, encouraged renewed efforts where necessary, and advised as to 
which recommendations have been satisfactorily resolved. 

 
7.  Summary of the Work Performed 
 

In addition to items noted above, the following is other work performed by the 
Audit Committee in the last 12 months. 
 

 Held private Audit Committee discussion with administration 
 Recommended Board approval of the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School 

Board Consolidated Financial Statements for Year Ended August 31, 2015 
 Reviewed External Audit Reporting Letter 
 Reviewed 2015-2016 External Audit Plan 
 Reviewed External Auditor Engagement Letter for Year Ending  

August 31, 2015 
 Reviewed External Auditor School Visits Summary 
 Reviewed External Auditor Management Letter 
 Completed annual Evaluation of External Auditor Performance 
 Recommended Board approval of appointment of External Auditors for 

fiscal year September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016 
 Reviewed Internal Audit Mandate 
 Reviewed 2014-2015 Internal Audit Plan updates 
 Reviewed 2015-2016 Internal Audit Plan 
 Completed annual Evaluation of Regional Internal Audit Team 

Performance 
 

We attest that we have discharged our duties and responsibilities respecting 
Ontario Regulation # 361/10. 
 
Diane Lloyd 
Trustee representative 
 
On behalf of the Audit Committee 

 
 
 

Ben Suter 
Audit Committee Chairperson 
 
November 15, 2016 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
Summarized Annual Report of the Audit Committee 

 to the Ministry of Education 
For Year Ended August 31, 2016 
as per Ontario Regulation 361/10 

 
 

During the 2015-2016 fiscal year: 
 

 Audits conducted by internal audit were completed by August 31, 2016.   
 

 Internal audit will continue to follow-up with management on outstanding 
recommendations from audits completed from 2010-2011 to 2015-2016. 

 
 
In addition, the following audits were completed in the 2015-2016 fiscal year: 

 
 School Generated Funds and P-Cards 
 IT General Controls and Governance 
 Enrolment at Continuing Education Facilities 
 Facility Operations Process 

 
 
There are no enrolment audits planned by the Regional Internal Audit Team  
for 2016-2017. 
 
Diane Lloyd 
Trustee representative 

 
On behalf of the Audit Committee 

 
 
 
Ben Suter    
Audit Committee Chairperson 
 
 
November 15, 2016 



Ref. Audits Year Comments

KPR-1
Facility Operations Process (including repairs & 

maintenance & Custodial Services)

2016-17 Kick Off Meeting held on Aug 

17/16. 

KPR-2 School Generated Funds & P-Cards 2016-17

KPR-3 Risk Assessment Update 2016-17 TBD

KPR-4 Outstanding Recommendations (Follow up) 2016-17 Updated to Aug 31, 2016.

KPR-5 Management Requests

(1) Attendance Support / Data Visualization 

2016-17 Kick-Off Meeting held on July 

14th, 2016.  

KPR-6 Management Requests

(2) School Board Governance

2016-17

KPR-7 Periodic meetings (monthly) with management 

and/or senior management

2016-17

KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT 2016-17 Internal Audit Plan
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 Item 11.1.3     November 24, 2016 
 

KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
SPECIAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
The committee met on November 1, 2016 and reports as follows. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present: J. Wilson Alternatives Community Program Services 

(Committee Chairperson) 
 S. Patterson Trustee (Committee Vice-chairperson) 
 T. Aeri Autism Ontario – Peterborough Chapter (alternate) 
 A. Cranfield Five Counties Children’s Centre 
 T. Hill Development Services Ontario 
 A. Lloyd Trustee 
 K. MacMurray First Nations 
 M. Marchen Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder Peterborough  
 K. Traynor Down Syndrome Association of Peterborough 
 P. Whittaker Community Living 
  
Regrets: J. Rich Autism Ontario – Peterborough Chapter 
 W. Johansen Ontario Association of Families of Children with 
  Communication Disorders 
 
Others: Trustee S. Bobka (Vice-chairperson of the Board), and J. Leclerc, G. Davis, 

S. Bell, G. Payne, L. Schoenmaker, C. Tozer and P. Jones were also 
present. 

 
Board Report 
 
Trustee A. Lloyd updated the committee on events and activities undertaken by the  
Board. 
 
EQAO Assessment Results, Grades 3, 6, 9 and OSSLT 
 
C. Tozer, Consultant:  Research and Accountability, provided an overview of the 
Education Quality and Accountability Office (EQAO) Grade 3 and 6 assessment results 
of reading, writing and mathematics, for testing that took place during the spring of 2016, 
as well as the EQAO Grade 9 assessment results of mathematics, for testing that took 
place in January (semester one) and June (semester two) 2016.  Also provided was an 
overview of the Ontario Secondary School Literacy Test (OSSLT) results for testing that 
took place in March 2016. 
 
Detailed results for both the elementary and secondary testing as compared to the 
province, as well as compared to Board results in all subject areas over time were 
shared.  The data included gender and special needs comparisons.  The five year trend 
for special needs students was also highlighted. 
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Discussion was held regarding special needs students in relation to applied and 
academic.  It was indicated that traditionally our Board has had a higher percentage of 
students on an Individual Education Plan (IEP), however, KPR has been cited as having 
the lowest deferral rate in the province which demonstrates the value the Board places 
on inclusivity in those who participate in the assessments. 
 
Concerns were acknowledged regarding the decline in achievement results in the area of 
mathematics.  Discussion was held and questions of clarification were addressed. 
 
Mathematics Strategy and Students with Learning Disabilities 
 
J. Leclerc, Superintendent of Teaching and Learning, reported that due to the low 
provincial math scores, the Ministry has reallocated funding for a number of initiatives 
into one fund.  The Renewed Mathematics Strategy is an early years to Grade 12 road 
map that leverages the collective knowledge and skills from our shared successes of the 
past, to focus on improving student achievement in mathematics.  The strategy provides 
new forms of support to all schools, increased support to some schools, and intensive 
support to a select group of schools with the greatest needs.  Support will also include a 
focus on the strengths and needs of students with learning disabilities and students 
taking compulsory courses in applied mathematics. 
 
Sample student profiles were shared and potential considerations were provided.  A 
newly developed KPR resource document entitled Supporting Students with Learning 
Disabilities in Mathematics was also shared, that will assist in providing staff with the 
information needed to ensure students with a learning disability are well supported. 
  
Administrative Update 
 
J. Leclerc, Superintendent of Teaching and Learning, shared correspondence received 
from the provincial Parent Associations Advisory Committee (PAAC) on SEAC, 
announcing the development of new SEAC training resources and the revised PAAC on 
SEAC Effective Practices Handbook for SEAC Members, 2016.  Information on how to 
access the new resources was also shared. 
 
Association Updates 
 
The following associations provided information including updates on upcoming 
meetings, in-services, and various events: 
 
 Five Counties Children’s Centre 
 Community Living 
 Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder Peterborough 
 Alternatives Community Program Services 
 First Nations 
 Developmental Services Ontario 
 Autism Ontario – Peterborough Chapter 
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New Business 
 
Committee Membership 
 
J. Wilson, Committee Chairperson, reported that correspondence was received from 
Autism Ontario – Peterborough Chapter, announcing that current representative Judy 
Rich is retiring from the role after 20-plus years of service to the chapter and the school 
board; and that Tanya Aeri has been nominated as their new representative.  A 
recommendation was adopted that the resignation be received with regret and the 
nomination be approved. 
 
Future Topics 
 
 Election of Committee Chairperson and Vice-chairperson – January 
 Developmental Services Ontario Presentation – January 
 Role of the Special Education Resource Teacher (SERT) 
 Learning and Life Skills (LLS) Program Update 
 Transitions and PPM No. 156, Supporting Transitions for Students with Special 

Education Needs 
 PPM No. 8, Identification of and Program Planning for Students with Learning 

Disabilities 
 OFIP Tutoring 
 Gifted Program Update  
 
Future Meeting Dates 
 
The next meeting of the Special Education Advisory Committee will be held in Room 158 
at the Education Centre, 1994 Fisher Drive, Peterborough, at 3:30 p.m. on January 10, 
2017. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the resignation of Judy Rich, representative to the Special Education 

Advisory Committee for Autism Ontario – Peterborough Chapter, be received with 
regret and sincere appreciation for her advocacy and support of students with 
special needs. 
 

2. That alternate representative Tanya Aeri be appointed as representative to the 
Special Education Advisory Committee for Autism Ontario – Peterborough 
Chapter, for the balance of the current four year term ending in 2018. 

 
3. That the Special Education Advisory Committee Report, dated November 24, 

2016, be received for information. 
 
Shirley Patterson 
Committee Vice-chairperson 
 
Julie Wilson 
Committee Chairperson 



Item 11.2.1    November 24, 2016 
  
TO:   Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board  

TOPIC: Pupil Accommodation Review:  Kirby Centennial Public School 
 
INITIATOR: Joe Tompkins, Superintendent, Student Achievement 
  Steve Girardi, Superintendent, Student Achievement 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board aims to provide educational 

programs and services of the highest quality, in facilities conducive to a 
stimulating learning environment and designed to meet the needs of all pupils, 
within fiscal parameters. In addition to facilitating the delivery of our Board 
mission, the Board will endeavour to optimize the use of its facilities. Various 
factors beyond the control of the Board impact on this commitment. These 
factors include declining, increasing, and shifting populations, current funding 
and operational realities, new provincial legislation and policy, changing 
educational objectives and physical limitations of buildings. 

 
2.  On September 24, 2015, the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 

reviewed and revised Board Policy BA-1.2, Pupil Accommodation Review:  
School Closure/Consolidation, which relates to pupil accommodation and 
accommodation reviews, as a result of new provincial directives released in 
March 2015. 

 
 This policy governs the process by which schools are to be identified and 

recommended for study and review. Any school, or group of schools, impacted 
by the following criteria, may be identified in an individual or group 
accommodation review. 

 
 Program Viability 
 
 Any school, or group of schools, which is deemed not able to offer a viable 

program in terms of enrolment, class sizes and/or grade configurations. This 
includes schools that under the normal staffing allocation would require the 
assignment of more than two grades to one class in elementary schools and 
multigrade/level/subjects to one class in secondary schools. Schools that are 
unable to provide an equitable range of learning opportunities for students will 
also be identified. 

 
Overcrowded 

 
Any school, or group of schools whose Average Daily Enrolment (ADE) 
exceeds, or is projected to exceed its pupil places as designated by the On The 
Ground Capacity allocation by 15% or more shall be identified. 
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Operating/Maintenance Costs 
 

Any school, or group of schools, which is/are deemed to have extraordinary 
operating and maintenance costs which affect efficiency within the grants 
provided by the Ministry to the Board, any school that is experiencing higher 
building maintenance expense than the average for the system and/or is in need 
of major capital improvements shall be identified. 

 
Underutilized 

 
Any school or group of schools whose Average Daily Enrolment (ADE) falls, or 
is projected to fall below 85% of the pupil places as designated by the On The 
Ground Capacity allocation. 

 
Other 

 
Any school, group of schools or area which, in the opinion of administration 
should be considered due to exceptional circumstances. Such exceptional 
circumstances can include but are not limited to: 

 
 the school is destroyed by fire or other catastrophe 

 the school is unusable due to environmental hazard 

 the school is unusable due to a health hazard 
 
All reviews of consolidations and/or closures must be conducted within the 
guidelines and expectations of the Ministry of Education. 

 
3. Kirby Centennial Public School is a K–6 school located on 3675 Concession 

Road 7, Orono, in the municipality of Clarington.  Students transition from Kirby 
Centennial Public School to The Pines Senior Public School for Grades 7 and 8. 
The school was built in 1968. Enrolment has declined at Kirby Centennial Public 
School from 193 students in 2000-2001 to the current enrolment of 92 students 
for the 2016-2017 school year. Enrolment at this level means that classrooms 
may be triple graded to provide class sizes similar to other schools. In such 
circumstances, the small number of students in each specific grade makes 
programming more difficult. As well, the school has an On The Ground Capacity 
of 164 pupil places. Enrolment is expected to continue to remain similar to this 
current enrollment for the next 10 years. 

 
4. As per Board Policy BA-1.2, Pupil Accommodation Review: School 

Closure/Consolidation, any school or group of schools whose Average Daily 
Enrolment (ADE) falls, or is projected to fall below 85% of the pupil places as 
designated by the On The Ground Capacity is considered underutilized and is to 
be considered for possible accommodation review. Kirby Centennial Public 
School is underutilized based on the following information: 
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 The On The Ground (OTG) Capacity for Kirby Centennial Public School is  
164 ADE; 

 Current enrolment of Kirby Centennial Public School is 92 students which is 
56% of capacity; 

 From 2000-2001, enrolment at Kirby Centennial Public School has declined 
by 101 students.   

 
5. The Long Term Accommodation Plan 2015-2020 was received for information by 

the Board of Trustees in May 2015. The Long Term Accommodation Plan is 
intended to provide the Board with information and/or direction on: 

 
 School buildings which are over or under utilized 

 Issues regarding program viability 

 Ten year enrolment projections 

 Status of physical plant including accessibility, physical condition and 
buildings where operations/maintenance costs exceed the norm 

 Indicators for future directions regarding new schools and/or additions, school 
consolidations/closures, boundary reviews/changes 

 
In the plan, it was recommended that the Board consider the consolidation of 
Kirby Centennial Public School and Orono Public School at the Orono Public 
School site.   

 
6. The recommended option for Kirby Centennial Public School is to have students 

from Kirby Centennial Public School attend Orono Public School in September 
2017. 

 
7. Kirby Centennial Public School meets the criteria for a modified accommodation 

review process in accordance with Board Policy BA-1.2, Pupil Accommodation 
Review: School Closure/Consolidation: 

 
 The average daily enrolment is less than 100 students. Current enrolment is 

92 students (of which 8 are out of boundary); and 

 The school is less than 10 km. from the nearest school of the same panel.  
Kirby Centennial Public School is 5.2 km from Orono Public School; and 

 The utilization rate of the school is less than 60%. Current utilization is 56%.  
 
8. Appendix A provides a proposed critical path for the modified accommodation 

review process. 
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RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That, in accordance with Board Policy BA-1.2, Pupil Accommodation Review:  

School Closure/Consolidation, which relates to pupil accommodation reviews, a 
Modified School Accommodation Review be held to consider the closure of Kirby 
Centennial Public School. 

 
 
 
Joe Tompkins 
Superintendent, Student Achievement 
 
Steve Girardi 
Superintendent, Student Achievement 
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Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 
 

Kirby Centennial Public School 
Modified Accommodation Review 

 
Draft Timelines 

 
Thursday, November 24, 2016 

 
 
 
 

Board Report Thursday, November 24, 2016 
 (Board Meeting) 
 
 
Accommodation Review Meeting    Monday, January 16, 2017 
(for public input)  
 
 
Public Delegation Opportunity Thursday, February 23, 2017 

(Board Meeting) 
 
 
Final Staff Report with feedback from compiled Thursday, March 23, 2017  
Public Delegations  (Board Meeting) 
 
 
Board Decision  Thursday, March 23, 2017 
  (Board Meeting) 
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TO: Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 
 
TOPIC: Naming of New Lakefield Elementary School – Ad Hoc Committee  
 
INITIATOR: Jack Nigro, Superintendent, Student Achievement, First Nation, Métis, 

and Inuit Education 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. During the Regular Board Meeting of March 29, 2016, the Kawartha Pine Ridge 

District School Board approved the relocation of Ridpath Junior Public School to 
the Lakefield District Secondary School building, creating a Kindergarten to 
Grade 8 school beginning in September 2017. 

 
STATUS 
 
2. Board Policy BA-6.1, Naming/Re-naming of Schools and Board Facilities, states 

that communities are to be given the opportunity to become involved in the 
naming or renaming of schools.  In all cases where Board buildings and schools 
are to be named or renamed, the Board will encourage suggestions from 
students, school councils, parent(s)/guardian(s), community members and staff.  
Each of these groups will be represented on an ad hoc committee formed to 
invite and review suggested names and offer a recommendation(s) to the Board 
for approval.  This committee will include the local trustee(s) and one trustee 
from another part of the district, that trustee being chosen by the Board. 

 
3. Superintendent Nigro will invite the principals and the school councils from the 

existing schools to submit names of chosen representatives to sit on the ad hoc 
committee. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board, in accordance with Board 

Policy BA-6.1, Naming/Re-naming of Schools and Board Facilities, approve the 
establishment of a Naming of New Lakefield Elementary School – Ad Hoc 
Committee whose membership will be as follows: 
 
i) Diane Lloyd, Trustee Representative (area in which the school will be 

located); 
ii)  Mary Lynch-Taylor, Trustee Representative (area in which the school will 

be located); 
iii) _______________, Trustee Representative (from another part of the 

Board=s jurisdiction); 
iv) Jack Nigro, Superintendent, Student Achievement, First Nation, Métis, and 

Inuit Education; 
v) Wilf Gray, Principal of Lakefield Intermediate School, Penelope Hope, 

Principal of Ridpath Junior Public School; 
vi) Judy Malfara – Communications Officer – School Liaison; 

  



Naming of New Lakefield Elementary School  Item 11.2.2     November 24, 2016 
 – Ad Hoc Committee Page 2 

 
 

 
vii) Parent Representatives from Lakefield Intermediate School, Ridpath 

Junior Public School and Buckhorn Public School; 
viii) Student Representatives (two to be announced); 
ix) Community Representative (to be announced). 

 
 
 
 
Jack Nigro 
Superintendent, Student Achievement, First Nation, Métis, and Inuit Education 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
The committee met on November 14, 2016 and reports as follows. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Denise Durnan and Elizabeth Ward (Committee Co-chairpersons), 

Trustee Jaine Klassen Jeninga, Janet Clarkson, Danielle Magvas, 
Carolyn McColl, Dana Petrillo, John Vickers and Marie Visser. 

 
Also Present:  W.R. (Rusty) Hick (Director of Education), Sonia Wilson (Strategic 

Priorities Lead) and Greg Kidd (Manager – Corporate Affairs).  
 
Regrets:  Amanda Amyot, Eric Baker, Jennifer Jickels and Annette Simpson. 
 
Welcome from the Co-chairpersons and Director, Review of the Role of the Committee 
 
Committee Co-chairpersons D. Durnan and E. Ward welcomed members to the 
committee and reviewed the role of the Parent Involvement Committee (PIC), its 
activities, and the committee’s mandate as established by Board policy and within the 
provincial Parent Engagement Policy and the Education Act.  
 
It was noted that, in accordance with Board policy and provincial directives, the 
committee also has community representatives for the current term.  After a public call 
for interested persons in this volunteer position, Marie Visser (Clarington), John Vickers 
(Northumberland) and Annette Simpson (Peterborough) were introduced as 
representatives for the new term. 
 
2016 Annual Parent Conference De-briefing 
 
G. Kidd reviewed with the committee programming and feedback from the most recent 
annual parent conference. 
 
Taking place on October 15, 2016, this annual conference provides workshop 
opportunities for parents on issues of common concern in education. This year’s 
conference occurred in the Northumberland region (Cobourg Collegiate Institute), and 
focused on continuing the broad theme of Healthy Children, including youth mental 
health supports. 
 
General discussion by the group included positive feedback from participants with 
respect to the workshops provided, with special commendation and praise for the 
keynote speaker, Dr. Ian Manion. Members of the committee expressed support and 
thanks to the presenters, and shared comments from participants on the great value in 
the material presented. 
 
The committee discussed the various workshops, length of conference timing, 
organization of the day, keynote speakers, as well as possible future overall themes for 
the 2017 conference. More discussion and next steps in planning for the 2017 
conference will continue at future meetings.   
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Parent Guides for Learning Refresh Project 
 
S. Wilson provided an update on this initiative to refresh the parent brochure series on 
topics such as literacy, math, kindergarten, homework, and many more. This project will use 
web-based communications to refresh these promotional materials, and take advantage of 
both print and digital communication strategies to provide more, and improved, resources to 
parent communities. This will be accomplished through a multi-media campaign revolving 
around printed Parent Resource postcards and social media promotions, which will 
encourage visits to the Parent section of the KPR website. On the website, parents will find 
resources in a variety of formats including animated videos, links, and tip sheets. 
 
As part of her update, S. Wilson presented to the committee a sampling of early 
versions of the animated videos for information and feedback. The committee 
expressed their appreciation to S. Wilson for this project, and provided positive 
feedback on the value of the newly formatted material for school councils and parents.  
 
Parent Involvement Committee #Hashtag Brainstorming 
 
Trustee Klassen Jeninga and G. Kidd initiated a conversation with respect to the 
establishment of a dedicated hashtag for schools to link parent engagement activities 
and events at schools. The committee discussed the logistics of how such a dedicated 
area could be available, and contributed to, by all schools, and the overall value of 
enabling schools to share and broadcast positive parent involvement events. G. Kidd 
and S. Wilson will electronically share possible hashtag proposals for consideration and 
feedback from the committee.  
 
Director’s Updates 
 
Director Hick provided a general update on current board and provincial news, including 
specifically highlighting the Ministry of Education’s engagement paper on promoting 
well-being in Ontario schools. 
 
Parent Involvement Funds Update 
 
G. Kidd reviewed the committee’s current budget.  The committee has received 
$9,772.00 from the Ministry of Education for the school year (based on a base amount 
of $5,000.00, plus a per pupil amount).  The committee also reviewed funding roll-over 
central to the PIC committee that, balanced with expenses to-date reflects $15,739.28 
in remaining available committee funds for the year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the Parent Involvement Committee Report, dated November 24, 2016, be 

received for information. 
 
Denise Durnan and Elizabeth Ward 
Committee Co-chairpersons 
 
Jaine Klassen Jeninga 
Trustee 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
  
PROGRAM REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
The committee met on November 8, 2016 and reports as follows. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present: Trustees C. Abraham (Chairperson of the Board), S. Bobka 

(Vice-chairperson of the Board), J. Klassen Jeninga (Committee 
Chairperson), A. Caruso, C. Dickson, S. Patterson and M. Lynch-Taylor. 

 
Others: Trustees W. Bonner and A. Lloyd, and J. Leclerc, G. Ingram, K. Zinkiewich 

and P. Jones were also present. 
 
Innovations and New Pedagogies for Deep Learning Update 
 
G. Ingram, Superintendent of Student Achievement, provided an overview of the 
Innovations and New Pedagogies for Deep Learning presentation, indicating that the 
focus of the evening would encompass the Modern Learning Environment as it relates 
to the KPR Strategic Plan, as well as other initiatives such as innovations collaboration 
projects, Robotics and Coding, New Pedagogies for Deep Learning (NPDL) and next 
steps in KPR in the area of innovations.  In addition, a brief hands-on experience would 
be conducted, and student and teacher voice would be shared to provide trustees with 
an indication of what is currently happening in schools in the area of innovations and 
modern learning. 
 
It was reported that during the 2015-2016 school year, teachers applied to participate in 
an Innovations Collaborative to explore how to plan for the integration of 21st century 
tools, using new technologies and Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Math 
(STEAM) based activities.  Eight small working groups were created by region and 
division, and came together to determine how they could use innovative practices and 
technologies to support student learning.  Teams met to learn about innovative 
practices including 21st Century Competencies (Creativity, Critical Thinking, Character, 
Collaboration, Communication, Citizenship), STEAM, Inquiry and Leveraging 
Technology.  Teams then determined which of the competencies their students needed 
to further develop, and planned tasks to support this.   

 
During the 2015-2016 school year, Warsaw, Armour Heights, Spring Valley, Smithfield 
and Harold Longworth Public Schools expressed an interest in this focus and were 
selected to receive robotics kits and professional learning in the area of planning and 
implementing robotics as a support for student learning.  This targeted funding was 
provided through the Ministry of Education and administered by the Council of Ontario 
Directors of Education (CODE).  The five schools came to a central day of learning and 
explored 21st Century Competencies, how coding and robotics fit into the curriculum and 
how to build and program the robotics.  
 
The Innovations Collaborative Inquiry has continued for the 2016-2017 school year with 
a refined focus on how classroom culture and experiences for both teachers and 
students can be reimagined.    
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In addition to the innovations collaborative and robotics, eight schools continued their 
focus on New Pedagogies for Deep Learning (NPDL).  Teachers continued to develop 
students’ 21st Century Competencies through the creation of rich learning tasks, 
leveraging technology to accelerate learning and building learning partnerships.   
 
New Pedagogies for Deep Learning (NPDL) has continued into the 2016-2017 school 
year.  The focus will be on creating a common understanding and definition of what a 
Modern Learning Environment is, what it means to plan for deep learning, and 
supporting teacher leaders to continue the work at the school level, with a focus on 
students leading their own learning and applying those learnings. 
 
Discussion was held and questions of clarification were addressed.  A recommendation 
was adopted that the Innovations and New Pedagogies for Deep Learning Update 
Report be received for information. 
 
Future Meeting Dates 
 
Future meeting dates for the 2016-2017 school year were reviewed.  The next regular 
meeting of the Program Review Committee will be held in the Boardroom at the Education 
Centre, 1994 Fisher Drive, Peterborough, at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 17, 2017. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the Program Review Committee Report, dated November 24, 2016, be 

received for information. 
 
 
 
 
 
Jaine Klassen Jeninga 
Committee Chairperson 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
FIRST NATIONS EDUCATION SERVICES AGREEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
The committee met on November 9, 2016, and reports as follows. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present: Trustee M. Lynch-Taylor (Committee Chairperson), C. Arnew, J. Nigro, 

and L. Musgrave. 
 
Regrets: K. MacMurray and N. Marsden-Fox. 
 
Others: R. Bonnetta was also present. 
 
First Nations Tuition Agreements and Municipal Taxes 
 
Trustee M. Lynch-Taylor, Committee Chairperson, reported that the tuition regulation, 
section 185 of the Education Act and section 64 of Ontario Regulation 196/10 (Grants 
for Student Needs) is designed to replicate the amount of money that a board would 
receive from the Ministry for a resident student and does not allow them to exceed that 
amount, unless a First Nation agrees to do so in its tuition agreement. There is currently 
no mechanism for the government to capture/track money being received for things like 
property taxes, sales taxes, income taxes, etc. that would enable them to somehow use 
that money to reduce the per-pupil tuition amount in an agreement.  
 
M. Lynch-Taylor will bring this item to other Indigenous Trustees in the Ontario Public 
School Boards’ Association to continue the conversation and L. Musgrave will take this 
item to the Curve Lake Education Committee. 
 
It was noted that each First Nation will speak directly to Chris Arnew with financial 
questions and matters that pertain to each First Nation tuition agreement. 
 
Circle of Schools 
 
Committee discussion took place regarding the purpose of the group, and future 
meeting agenda items and meeting dates, when there are no agenda items to discuss. 
Only one First Nations representative was in attendance, so future discussion with all 
three First Nations representatives will be needed. M. Lynch-Taylor noted that the 
Board is prepared to continue to meet as scheduled. 
 
J. Nigro, Superintendent, Student Achievement, First Nation, Métis, and Inuit Education 
reported that ongoing communication continues with the key schools that provide 
education to First Nations students within the Board as well as all schools in the Board 
to promote Indigenous Education and engagement in Board initiated events and 
awareness days such as: Orange Shirt Day, Treaty Recognition Week and book and 
video resources. 
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Communications will be ongoing, and the First Nation Education Managers/Counsellor 
were encouraged to provide input regarding any key issues that would help reinforce, 
improve and support their work for sharing with the principals in the Circle of Schools. 
 
Future Meeting Dates 
 
Future meeting dates for the 2016-2017 school year were reviewed.  The next meeting 
of the First Nations Education Services Agreement Committee will be held in Room 158 
at the Education Centre, 1994 Fisher Drive, Peterborough, at 11:00 a.m. on 
Wednesday, February 1, 2017. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the First Nations Education Services Agreement Committee Report, dated 

November 24, 2016, be received for information. 
 
 
 
 
Mary Lynch-Taylor 
Committee Chairperson 
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KAWARTHA PINE RIDGE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON ABORIGINAL ISSUES REPORT 
 
The committee met on November 9, 2016 and reports as follows. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present: Trustee M. Lynch-Taylor (Committee Chairperson), C. Bunn, C. Gray, 
 N. Marsden-Fox and L. Musgrave.  
 
Regrets: A. Fleguel, L. Flynn and K. MacMurray. 
 
Absent: C. Lemelin and L. Stone. 
 
Others: Trustee S. Bobka, M. Crowe, P. Hope, S. Matthews, S. Mattson, J. Nigro, 

J. Stewart, S. Rhodes, C. Tozer, and R. Bonnetta were also present.  
 
EQAO Results  
 
C. Tozer, Data Leader and Information Officer, presented the 2015-2016 EQAO results 
for First Nation, Métis, and Inuit (FNMI) self-identified students. Highlights of the 
presentation were that EQAO conducts assessments in Grades 3, 6, 9 and 10 and 
results for FNMI students are not released to the public. 
 
Self-identification data helps the Board and the Province monitor the impact of 
programs and services for FNMI students. Comparisons across the province show that 
our FNMI students are doing relatively well compared to FNMI students across the 
province. However, some achievement gaps are evident between our FNMI students 
and other non-FNMI KPR students. Our data also shows a steady increase in self-
identification between 2010 and 2016.  
 
Self-identification 
 
A review of Board Policy ES-3.13, First Nation, Métis, and Inuit Voluntary Self-
identification, will take place this year. The Voluntary Self-identification for First Nation, 
Métis and Inuit Students brochure will also be reviewed and revised. 
 
Superintendent Nigro reported that continued communication with all First Nations 
groups will help to re-open discussion and provide more information on the benefits of 
self-identification. The final decision remains with the families. It is estimated that 7% of 
our students could self-identify (based on census data), and we currently have 2.5%. 
KPR Indigenous Education work is for the benefit of all students.  
 
Trustee Lynch-Taylor suggested that all committee members look at the self-
identification policy and brochure for content and bring ideas and comments to the next 
meeting, and to take this opportunity to think of another phrase such as “Count Me In” for 
self-identification.  
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Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Terms of Reference 
 
Trustee Lynch-Taylor shared that the terminology, titles and provincial references are 
moving toward using the term Indigenous Education and that there is an opportunity to 
look at same for this committee, to modify and adapt the name around the term 
Indigenous. Trustee Lynch-Taylor asked that all committee members review the Terms 
of Reference document and submit suggestions for revision, to the next meeting.  
 
2016-2017 Board Action Plan on First Nation, Métis, and Inuit Education 
 
Superintendent Nigro received comments from First Nations representatives that they 
would like an opportunity to have input and review prior to submission to the Ministry. 
A request was also made to meet and review starting in May and have input to support 
the document. They would also like to see some evaluation and outcomes of the current 
plan in order to provide input for the coming year.  Trustee Lynch-Taylor suggested that 
an additional column be added for progress updates and that the committee have 
additional time for input for future reports.  
 
Circle 
 
Each attendee, from the perspective of their individual role, shared items of interest with 
the group.  Committee members and guests shared school activities that highlighted an 
awareness and understanding of Indigenous culture and inclusionary practices, new 
educational programs and activities that support families and students, and pertinent 
information from the broader Indigenous community.   
 
Highlights of this discussion were the many Indigenous learning opportunities presented 
to both schools and Education Centre staff. J. Nigro and S. Mattson reported a busy fall 
that began with Orange Shirt Day, followed by Treaties Recognition Week 
November 6-12, with schools receiving a First Nations and Treaties map, and 
announcements to use each day. The KAIROS Blanket Exercise was brought to the 
Education Centre for staff and the popular books Secret Path and Wenjack have been 
purchased, as resources, for teaching about residential schools. Schools are sharing 
many wonderful events via Twitter and school newsletters. Superintendent Nigro reports 
that the focus for the leadership conference this year is Indigenous Education and that 
many on the planning committee were in attendance earlier this month at the Provincial 
Leads Gathering and the Indspire Conference to support bringing that learning to our 
school and system leaders in February. 
 
Superintendent Nigro also reports that over 30 secondary students will be in attendance 
at the first meeting of the Director’s Indigenous Student Advisory Group on 
November 22, 2016 at the Education Centre.  
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Future Meeting Dates 
 
The next meeting of the Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues will be held in 
Room 158 at the Education Centre, 1994 Fisher Drive, Peterborough, at 9:00 a.m. on 
Wednesday, February 1, 2017. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Report, dated November 24, 
2016, be received for information. 

 
 
 
 
Mary Lynch-Taylor 
Committee Chairperson   
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 Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board 
 
 Future Meeting Dates 
 

* September 13, 2016 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 
September 14, 2016 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
September 19 15, 2016 Audit Committee Mtg. (3:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

 September 12 19, 2016 Parent Involvement Committee Mtg. (6:30 p.m.)  Rm. 158 
September 20, 2016 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* September 22, 2016 Regular Board Mtg.  (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
September 28, 2016 Chairpersons’ Committee Mtg.  (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
 

* October 4, 2016 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 
October 5 4, 2016    NOTE NEW DATE Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Committee Mtg. (9:30 a.m.) Rm. 158 

October 5, 2016 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Mtg. (9:00 a.m.) Rm. 158 
October 12 11, 2016 NOTE NEW DATE Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
October 11 12, 2016 NOTE NEW DATE Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* October 27, 2016 Regular Board Mtg. (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
 

* November 1, 2016 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 
November 8, 2016 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
November 9, 2016       CANCELLED Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Committee Mtg. (9:30 a.m.) Rm. 158 
November 2 9, 2016 NOTE DATE/LOC First Nations Education Services Agreement (9:00 a.m.) Nogojiwanong 
 Committee Mtg.  Friendship 
 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Mtg. (10:00 a.m.) Centre 
November 9, 2016 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
November 14, 2016 Parent Involvement Committee Mtg. (6:30 p.m.)  Rm. 158 
November 10 15, 2016  NOTE DATE Audit Committee Mtg. (3:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* November 24, 2016 Regular Board Mtg. (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
 

* December 1, 2016 Organizational Board Mtg. (OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
* December 22 15, 2016   NOTE DATE Regular Board Mtg. (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

 
* January 10, 2017 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 

January 11, 2017 Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Committee Mtg. (9:30 a.m.) Rm. 158 
January 17, 2017 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
January 18, 2017 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
January 23, 2017 Parent Involvement Committee Mtg. (6:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 

* January 26, 2017 Regular Board Mtg.  (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
 
February 1, 2017 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Mtg. (9:00 a.m.) Rm. 158 
February 1, 2017 First Nations Education Services Agreement (11:00 a.m.) Rm. 158 
 Committee Mtg. 
February 1, 2017 Chairpersons’ Committee Mtg.  (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
February 6, 2017 Audit Committee Mtg. (3:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* February 7, 2017 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 
February 8, 2017 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
February 14, 2017 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* February 23, 2017 Regular Board Mtg.  (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
February 27, 2017   NOTE NEW MTG Parent Involvement Committee Mtg. (6:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 
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* March 6, 2017 Budget Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
* March 7, 2017 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 

March 8, 2017 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
March 21, 2017 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* March 23, 2017 Regular Board Mtg.  (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
 

April 3, 2017 Parent Involvement Committee Mtg. (6:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 
* April 4, 2017 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 

April 5, 2017 Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Committee Mtg. (9:30 a.m.) Rm. 158 
April 10, 2017 Chairpersons’ Committee Mtg.  (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
April 11, 2017 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
April 12, 2017 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* April 24, 2017 Budget Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
* April 27, 2017 Regular Board Mtg.  (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

 
* May 1, 2017 Budget Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
* May 2, 2017 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 

May 3, 2017 Advisory Committee on Aboriginal Issues Mtg. (9:00 a.m.) Rm. 158 
May 3, 2017 First Nations Education Services Agreement (11:00 a.m.) Rm. 158 
 Committee Mtg. 
May 4, 2017 Parent Involvement Committee Mtg.  (following Trustee/ (Location TBA) 
  School Council Dialogue) 

* May 8, 2017 Budget Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
May 9, 2017 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
May 10, 2017 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* May 15, 2017 Budget Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
May 16, 2017 Chairpersons’ Committee Mtg.  (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
May 17, 2017 MPP/Trustee Dialogue Session (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* May 25, 2017 Regular Board Mtg.  (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
* May 30, 2017 Special Education Advisory Committee Mtg. (3:30 p.m.) Rm. 158 

 
June 7, 2017 Resource Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
June 12, 2017 Audit Committee Mtg. (3:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
June 13, 2017 Program Review Committee Mtg. (7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 

* June 15, 2017 Regular Board Mtg.  (IC 6:15 p.m. / OS 7:00 p.m.) Boardroom 
 
 

IC – In-camera Session          OS – Open Session 

* Most Regular Board Meetings, Budget Committee Meetings, and Special Education Advisory Committee 
Meetings are available via video conferencing at the Brighton, Cobourg and Clarington locations. 
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